
DICAL



$tiw1

AFTE RING ROM RE ECLAMPSJA DUR1
33 year old Keihe of Adelaide South AustFalla Was diagnosai wrth

high blood pressure Her condthon led to painful headaches nd cosnY
arm discomfort

After trying multiple medications without uccess KeIIieuflcerWn pa1 rryotor

therapy Rena denervation is revolutionarytherapy proven to reduce btpOc prssure jr

patients with drug resistant hypertension Usingthe St Jude Medical EnUgHTN renal

denervation system the physician made several ablations along the renalsyrnpathetiQ

nerves network of nerves that help control blood flow to the kiddeysln doig6th
nerve supply to the kidney is intentionally disrupted causing blood pressure to decreae

Since her procedure in late 2011 Kellie has had the freedom to fully live life She no longer

suffers from headaches has lower blood pressure and enjoys playing cricket and basket

ball with her husband and three children
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to enjoy healThier life

nd and chdren

The EnhgHTN Renal Denervation

System approved for use in European

Union countries and her nterna

tional markets enables cuttingedge

efficiencies in procedural based

hypertension control by reducing the

number of catheter manipulations

needed to dwrupt the sympathetic

nerve network the renal artery

wth speed and placement

accuracy The unique multoablation

nomoccluding basket dewgn makes

four ablabons in predictable pattern

without readjustment potenba ly

reducing renal denervation procedure

time and ncreasing pocedural

accuracy Renal dene vation has been

demonstrated to effecbvely reduce

systolic
ood pressure



To OUR

SHARE HOLDERS

At St Jude Medical we believe that investing in purposeful

innovation is instrumental to our success St Jude Medical

has become and will continue to be one of the largest and

most successful medical device companies in the world by

excelling at delivering high-quality innovative products that

reduce health care costs and improve outcomes for patients

who suffer from expensive epidemic diseases such as atrial

fibrillation heart failure hypertension stroke and chronic pain

One of the major social challenges of our time is determining

how to provide high-quality affordable health care to an aging

population on universal basis commitment to helping

patients while reducing the cost of health care is critical to

success for high-tech medical device company and is

significant competitive advantage for our product portfolio

While St Jude Medical continued to deliver on this commit

ment in 2012 want to acknowledge that we did not fully

deliver on our growth expectations last year Our sales growth

was lower than expected due to number of factors but the

two primary limitations were continued weakness in European

markets and greater impact than we expected on our

cardiac rhythm management business associated with the

recall of certain products However our strong operating

discipline enabled us to deliver adjusted earnings per share

EPS in 2012 that exceeded expectations Although we

expect sales growth in 2013 to remain challenging due to

macro-economic factors structural changes in health care

Adjusted earnings per share is non-GAAP measure and excludes

certain charges See page for reconciliation

DANIEL STARKS

chairman President and chief Executive Officer

Vascular d..use Migraine

Hypertension Depression

Valvular disease



PRODUCT UPDATESand the emerging nature of many of our growth drivers

we are firmly committed to delivering superior growth in EPS

during 2013 without sacrificing investment in research

and development

There were three key operational highlights during 2012 that

give us confidence and optimism about our ability to grow our

business and continue delivering value to shareholders

moving forward

1.We restructured our company in 2012 combining our

former Atrial Fibrillation AF and Cardiovascular Divisions

into the new Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies

Division and our Cardiac Rhythm Management and

Neuromodulation Divisions into the new Implantable

Electronic Systems Division as well as centralizing certain

administrative functions such as Information Technology

Human Resources and Legal which we expect to improve

costs quality and speed-to-market by capturing additional

product development and manufacturing synergies This

restructuring generated more than $100 million in incre

mental cost savings and strengthened our ability to fund

disciplined acquisitions or return cash to shareholders

We were able to initiate two stock buy-backs totaling $1.3

billion in the fourth quarter of 2012 which we estimate will

generate benefit of $0.36 EPS for 2013 We also returned

$284 million to shareholders as we increased our annual

dividend by 10 percent

We delivered adjusted EPS growth of 11 percent on

constant currency basis in 2012 while investing 12.3

percent of our revenue in research and development Our

guidance for 2013 reflects that we expect to deliver

adjusted EPS growth greater than sales growth again this

year due to the benefit of the restructuring activities our

ongoing expansion of manufacturing in cost advantaged

locations and our share repurchase program

Despite these operational benefits to our business the

challenge in 2013 will be to accelerate sales growth In order

to do this we are focused on delivering balanced portfolio of

established fast-follower and pioneering technologies that will

provide St Jude Medical with both near-term and long-term

revenue growth

During 2012 we launched several new technologies that will

support our return to sales growth

EnhigHTN Renal Denervation System

Given St.Jude Medicals long history in ablation technologies

for cardiac arrhythmias we have been able to leverage

technologies and expertise to optimize costs quality and

speed-to-market in our renal denervation program for

treatment-resistant hypertension This support allowed us to

launch our first-generation EnIigHTN renal denervation

system in Europe during the first half of 2012 two quarters

ahead of expectations

Using the EnIigHTN system an ablation catheter delivers

radiofrequency RF energy to create lesions tiny scars

along the renal sympathetic nerves network of nerves

St.Jude Medical EnI1gHTN Renal Denervation System

near the kidneys that help to regulate pressure the inten

tional disruption of the nerve supply has been clinically found

to decrease systolic blood pressure The system is the

industrys first multi-electrode ablation technology for renal

denervation Compared to single electrode ablations the

EnIigHTN multi-electrode system has the potential to improve

consistency and procedural reliability save time and result in

workflow and cost efficiencies Additionally the minimal

catheter repositioning required of multi-electrode system

may result in reduction of contrast and fluoroscopic X-ray

exposure The second-generation EnligHTN system is

expected to launch in Europe in mid-2013 and will further

simplify and speed the procedure through simultaneous

multi-electrode activation



During 2012 St Jude Medical also generated clinical

evidence in our EnIigHTN trial that demonstrated the

EnIigHTN system provided rapid and significant reduction in

blood pressure over at least six-month timeframe In

addition to our existing data we have implemented robust

clinical trial program to help develop the clinical evidence

needed to obtain reimbursement and influence physician

referrals This program will include additional one-year data

from our EnIigHTN trial 500-patient EnIIgHTN II observa

tional trial that is already underway the EnIigHTN lU trial to

evaluate our second-generation system and our landmark

randomized controlled EnligHTNment trial which is the first

large-scale study that will examine whether this technology

can ultimately reduce the risk of major cardiac events such

as heart attack stroke and death in patients who have

uncontrolled or treatment-resistant hypertension The U.S

pivotal Investigational Device Exemption IDE trial to support

U.S Food and Drug Administration FDA approval of this

technology is expected to begin enrolling patients in the

second half of 2013

MediGuide Technology

highlight of our AF business in 2012 is the progress we

continue to make advancing our MediGuide program The

MediGuide technology is the first and only three-dimensional

navigation system intended for the evaluation of vascular and

cardiac anatomy on recorded fluoroscopic image instead of

live fluoroscopy series of X-ray images Similar to global

positioning system GPS that automobile drivers use to

determine the location of their car on map MediGuide

technology allows physicians to see the precise location and

orientation of MediGuide Enabled devices inside the heart

St Jude Medical launched the first MediGuide system in

2011 and during 2012 we expanded our limited launch of

MediGuide systems to four additional centers in Europe and

two centers in the United States Initial customer feedback is

encouraging and reinforces our optimism that our MediGuide

system has the potential to become disruptive technology in

the electrophysiology cath lab by improving procedural

effectiveness while also reducing patient and clinician exposure

to radiation In 2013 we will be focused on expanding our

portfolio of MediGuide Enabled devices including ablation

catheters and CR1 delivery tools generating clinical evidence

documenting the value of the technology launching

MediGuide systems into at least 12 new centers and preparing

for full commercial release of this product platform in 2014

While the companys early focus with MediGuide technology

has been in the EP lab this platform will ultimately be

synergistic across our broad portfolio including optimization

of percutaneous coronary intervention procedures left atrial

appendage closure transcatheter heart valve repair and

replacement and neurostimulation lead placement

Portico Transcatheter Aortic Valve

Implantation System

At the end of 2012 St Jude Medical

began limited launch of our 23 mm

Portico transcatheter aortic valve

and transfemoral delivery system in

Europe Designed for patients with

severe aortic stenosis who are

considered to be inoperable or at

high risk for conventional open-heart

valve replacement surgery the Portico valve is implanted

through small incision in the femoral artery the main artery

of the leg The procedure uses catheter to deliver and

position the valve in the heart and occurs while the heart

continues to beat This avoids the need to place the patient on

cardiopulmonary bypass process in which machine takes

over heart and lung function during surgery The Portico

device is the only approved transcatheter valve that can be

completely resheathed the process of bringing the valve back

into the delivery catheter repositioned at the implant site or

retrieved before it is released from the delivery system The

approval of this first valve size gives St Jude Medical access

to approximately 20 percent of the $1.9 billion market

opportunity for transcathether valve replacement

St.Jude Medical 23 mm
Portico Transcatheter

Aortic Valve

St.Jude Medical MediGuide Technology



St Jude Medical also announced the first implant of the

Portico valve via the transapical approach in which small

incision is made between the patients ribs and the valve is

delivered through the apex or lower tip of the left ventricle of

the heart as well as the first patient implant of its 25 mm
Portico valve in its ongoing European trial European approval

of both the transapical delivery system and the 25 mm valve

are expected in 2013 Approval of the 25 mm valve would give

the company access to an additional 40 percent of the market

The Portico valve is not yet approved for use in the United

States U.S clinical trial evaluating the Portico valve is

expected to start in the second half of 2013 The trial will be

conducted under an FDA IDE

SUMMARY AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2013

With the progress we have made toward accelerating our

growth in 2012 and the more than 20 unique technologies

and product families that will launch during 2013 at St Jude

Medical we believe we are well positioned to bring best-in-

class technologies to the market that will become standard-of-

care in important impactful markets

We thank our Board of Directors for their continued support

and direction particularly through the challenges we have

faced in the last year We also thank all of our St Jude Medical

employees who have maintained their dedication and strong

work ethic through difficult year of organizational change

Whether working directly with products customers or patients

or supporting our business in other ways our employees make

it possible for St Jude Medical to save and improve lives each

and every day

FORTUNE Magazine names

St Jude Medical among the

TOP 50
Worlds Most Admired Companies

There are lot of things for St Jude Medical stakeholders to

be excited about this year The last year certainly had

number of challenges but our operating discipline and the

continuity of our balanced portfolio of technologies are key

strengths and competitive advantages that position us well for

return to growth We know that if we continue our focus on

delivering innovative technology that improves patient out

comes and reduces the cost of health care we will be

successful and will ensure our place as vital contributor to

the future health care industry

Sincerely

Daniel Starks

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

St Jude Medical Inc

March 2013
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FIVEYEAR SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA in millions except per share amounts

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Summary of Operations for the Fiscal Year

Net sales $5503 $5612 $5164 $4681 $4363

Gross profit 3965 4079 3754 3428 3193

Percent of net sales 72.1% 72.7% 72.7% 73.2% 73.2%

Operating profit 1100 1115 1276 1113 655

Percent of net sales 20.0% 19.9% 24.7% 23.8% 15.0%

Net earnings 752 826 907 777 353

Percent of net sales 13.7% 14.7% 17.6% 16.6% 8.1%

Diluted net earnings per share 2.39a 2.52w 2.75c 2.26d 1.01e

Cash dividends declared
per

share 0.92 0.84

Financial Position at Year End

Cash and cash equivalents $1194 986 500 393 136

Working capital 1776 2323 1895 1493 1052

Total assets 9271 9118 8566 6426 5723

Total debta 3080 2796 2512 1922 1202

Shareholders equity $4094 $4475 $4372 $3325 $3236

Other Data

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 314.8 327.1 330.5 344.4 349.7

Fiscal year 2008 consisted of 53 weeks All other fiscal years noted above consisted of 52 weeks The Company did not declare or pay any cash dividends during 2008 through

2010 Beginning in fiscal year 2011 the Company began declaring and paying cash dividends

2012 diluted net earnings per share include after-tax special charges of $275 million related to the Companys realignment of its product divisions into two new operating

divisions the Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies Division CATD combining the legacy Cardiovascular and Atrisl Fibrillation product divisions and the Implantable

Electronic Systems Division IIESDI combining the legacy Cardiac Rhythm Management and Neuromodulation product divisions and centralization of certain support

functions $122 million ongoing restructuring actions in the Companys cardiac rhythm management business and sales and selling support organizstions $75 million

IESD litigation and field action costs $27 million license dispute settlement charge $25 million and intangible asset impairment charges and inventory write-ofts $26

million Additionally the Company recognized $46 million of additional income tas espense related to settlement reserve for certain prior year tas positions See Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements in the Financial Report for further detail The impact of these items on 2012 net earnings was $321 million or $1.02 per diluted share

Ib 2011 diluted net earnings per
share include after-tax special charges of $151 million related to restructuring activities $121 million and intangible asset impairment charges

l$30 million as well as after-tax IPRD charges of $3 million See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Financial Report for further detail The impact of these

items on 2011 net earnings was $154 million or $0.47 per
diluted share

2010 diluted net earnings per share include after-tax special charges of $33 million after-tax IPRD charges of $12 million and an after-tax investment impairment charge of $5

million See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Financial Report for further detail The impact of these items on 2010 net earnings was $50 million or $0.15

per diluted share

2009 diluted net earnings per share include after-fax special charges of $76 million an after-tax investment impairment charge of $5 million and after-tax IPRD charges of $4

million The impact of these items on 2009 net earnings was $85 million or $0.25 per diluted share

2008 diluted net earnings per share include $319 million of after-tax IPRD charges after-tax special charges of $73 million and after-tax investment impairment charges of $8

million The impact of these items on 2008 net earnings was $400 million or $1.15 per diluted share

Total current assets less total current liabilities Working capital fluctuations can be significant based on the maturity dates of the Companys debt obligations The Companys

current debt obligations included in current liabilities were $530 million 2012 $83 million 2011 $80 million 2010 $335 million 2009 and $76 million 12008

Total debt consists of current debt obligations and long-term debt



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

Our business is focused on the development manufacture

and distribution of cardiovascular medical devices for the

global cardiac rhythm management cardiovascular and

atrial fibrillation therapy areas and implantable neurostimula

tion medical devices for the management of chronic pain We

sell our products in more than 100 countries around the world

Our largest geographic markets are the United States Europe

Japan and Asia Pacific Our principal products in each therapy

area are as follows Cardiac Rhythm Management tachycar

dia implantable cardioverter defibrillator systems lCDs and

bradycardia pacemaker systems pacemakers Cardiovascular

vascular products which include vascular closure products

pressure measurement guidewires optical coherence tomo

graphy OCT imaging products vascular plugs and other vas

cular accessories and structural heart products which include

heart valve replacement and repair products and structural

heart defect devices Atrial Fibrillation electrophysiology

EP introducers and catheters advanced cardiac mapping

navigation and recording systems and ablation systems and

Neuromodulation neurostirnulation products which include

spinal cord and deep brain stimulation devices References to

St Jude Medical St Jude the Company we us
and our are to St Jude Medical Inc and its subsidiaries

On August 30 2012 we announced the realignment of our

product divisions into two new operating divisions the

Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies Division CATD

combining our legacy Cardiovascular CV and Atrial

Fibrillation AF product divisions and the lmplantable

Electronic Systems Division IESD combining our legacy

Cardiac Rhythm Management CRM and Neuromodulation

NMD product divisions In addition we centralized certain

support functions including information technology human

resources legal business development and certain marketing

functions The organizational changes are part of compre

hensive plan to accelerate our growth reduce costs leverage

economies of scale and increase investment in product devel

opment While this divisional realignment was effective August

30 2012 we have continued to report under our legacy oper

ating segment structure for internal management financial fore

casting and reporting purposes through the end of fiscal year

2012 We will report under the new organizational structure

effective the beginning of fiscal year 2013

Our industry has undergone significant consolidation in the last

decade and is highly competitive Our strategy requires signifi

cant investment in research and development in order to intro

duce new products We are focused on improving our operating

margins through variety of techniques including the produc

tion of high quality products the development of leading edge

technology the enhancement of our existing products and con

tinuous improvement of our manufacturing processes We

expect competitive pressures in the industry global economic

conditions cost containment pressure on healthcare systems

and the implementation of U.S healthcare reform legislation

to continue to place downward pressure on prices for our prod

ucts impact reimbursement for our products and potentially

reduce medical procedure volumes

In March 2010 significant U.S healthcare reform legislation

the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act PPACA along

with the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010

was enacted into law As U.S headquartered company with

significant sales in the United States this health care reform

law will materially impact us Certain provisions of the health

care reform are not effective for number of years and there

are many programs and requirements for which the details

have not yet been fully established or consequences not fully

understood and it is unclear what the full impact will be from

the legislation The law does levy 2.3% excise tax on all U.S

medical device sales beginning in 2013 Our U.S net sales

represented approximately 47% of our worldwide consolidated

net sales in 2012 and we expect the new tax will materially and

adversely affect our business cash flows and results of opera

tions The law also focuses on number of Medicare provisions

aimed at improving quality and decreasing costs It is uncertain

at this point what impact these provisions will have on patient

access to new technologies The Medicare provisions also

include value-based payment programs increased funding of

corn pa rative effectiveness research reduced hospital payments

for avoidable readmissions and hospital acquired conditions

and pilot programs to evaluate alternative payment methodolo

gies that promote care coordination such as bundled physi

cian and hospital payments Additionally the law includes

reduction in the annual rate of inflation for hospitals that began

in 2011 and the establishment of an independent payment

advisory board to recommend ways of reducing the rate of

growth in Medicare spending beginning in 2014 We cannot

predict what healthcare programs and regulations will be ulti

mately implemented at the federal or state level or the effect of

any future legislation or regulation However any changes that

lower reimbursement for our products or reduce medical pro

cedure volumes could adversely affect our business and results

of operations

We participate in several different medical device markets

each of which has its own expected growth rate significant

portion of our net sales relate to CRM devices lCDs and

pacemakers During early March 2010 principal competitor

in the CRM market Boston Scientific Inc Boston Scientific

suspended sales of its lCD products in the United States

Although Boston Scientific resumed sales in mid-April 2010

we experienced an incremental lCD net sales benefit of approx

imately $40 million during 2010 During 2011 the lCD market

in the United States was negatively impacted by decline in

implant volumes and pricing resulting from the publication of



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

an lCD utilization article in January 2011 in the Journal of the

American Medical Association JAMA and subsequent hospital

investigation by the U.S Department of Justice DOJ During

the current year the U.S lCD market has continued to experi

ence these negative impacts and we estimate the 2012 U.S

lCD market has contracted at mid single-digit percentage rate

from the 2011 comparable period While the long-term impact

on the CRM market is uncertain management remains focused

on increasing our worldwide CRM market share as we are one

of three principal manufacturers and suppliers in the global

CRM market We are also investing in our other therapy areas

cardiovascular atrial fibrillation and neuromodulation to

increase our market share in these markets and grow sales

through continued market penetration

We utilize 52/53-week fiscal year ending on the Saturday

nearest December 31st Fiscal years 2012 2011 and 2010

consisted of 52 weeks and ended on December 29 2012
December 31 2011 and January 2011 respectively

Net sales in 2012 decreased 2% from 2011 as unfavorable for

eign currency translation decreased our net sales by $137 mil

lion or 2% Our 2012 CRM net sales of $2854 million

decreased 6% compared to the prior year due to continued

lCD market contraction in the United States and unfavorable

foreign currency translation of $74 million Our 2012 CV net

sales of $1328 million decreased 1% compared to 2011 due

to unfavorable foreign currency translation of $36 million Our

2012 AF net sales of $898 million increased 9% compared to

the prior year primarily due to the continued increase in ER

catheter ablation procedures and the continued market pene

tration of our EnSite Velocity System and related connectivity

tools The increase in AF net sales during 2012 was partially

offset by unfavorable foreign currency translation of $20 million

compared to the prior year Our 2012 NMD net sales of $423

million increased 1% compared to 2011 due to the continued

market acceptance of our products partially offset by unfavor

able foreign currency translation of $7 million compared to the

prior year

Net sales in 2011 increased 9% over 2010 net sales led by

incremental net sales from our 2010 acquisitions of AGA

Medical Holdings Inc AGA Medical and LightLab Imaging

Inc LightLab Imaging Our products to treat atrial fibrillation

also contributed to the increase Foreign currency translation

comparisons increased our 2011 net sales by $183 million

compared to 2010 Our 2011 CRM net sales of $3034 million

were flat compared to 2010 due to CRM market contraction in

the United States in 2011 Our 2011 CV net sales increased

29% to $1337 million compared to the prior year driven by

incremental net sales from our AGA Medical and LightLab

Imaging acquisitions Our 2011 AF net sales increased 16% to

$822 million compared to 2010 due to increased EP catheter

ablation procedures continued market penetration of our

EnSite Velocity System and the ongoing rollout of ER irrigated

ablation catheters which had been recently approved Our

2011 NMD net sales grew 10% to $419 million compared to

2010 driven by continued market acceptance and market pen
etration of our neurostimulation devices Refer to the Segment

Performance section for more detailed discussion of our net

sales results by operating segment for both 2012 and 2011

Net earnings in 2012 of $752 million and diluted net earnings

per share of $2.39 decreased compared to 2011 net earnings

of $826 million and diluted net earnings per share of $2.52

Our 2012 net earnings were negatively impacted by after-tax

charges of $275 million or $0.87 per diluted share related to

our 2012 realignment plan announced in August 2012 ongo

ing restructuring charges related to the 2011 restructuring

plan IESD litigation and field action costs license dispute

settlement charge intangible asset impairment charges and

inventory write-offs Additionally we recognized $46 million or

$0.15 per diluted share of additional income tax expense

related to settlement reserve for certain prior year tax posi

tions In 2011 our net earnings were impacted by after-tax

charges of $154 million or $0.47 per diluted share related to

restructuring charges to realign certain activities in our CRM

business and our sales and selling support organizations

intangible asset impairment charges and in-process research

and development IPRD charges We also recognized $47

million of after-tax accounts receivable allowance charges or

$0.14 per diluted share for increased collection risks with cus

tomers in Europe Refer to the Results of Operations section for

more detailed discussion of these charges The impact of

these after-tax charges to our 2012 diluted net earnings per

share was partially offset by share repurchases resulting in

lower outstanding shares in 2012 compared to 2011

Net earnings in 2011 of $826 million and diluted net earnings

per share of $2.52 decreased compared to 2010 net earnings

of $907 million and diluted net earnings per share of $2.75

Our 2011 net earnings were negatively impacted by total after-

tax charges discussed previously of $201 million or $0.61 per

diluted share primarily related to restructuring charges and

European accounts receivable allowance charges In 2010 our

net earnings were impacted by after-tax charges of $50 million

or $0.15 per diluted share related to special charges IPRD

charges and investment impairment charges Refer to the

Results of Operations sction for more detailed discussion of

these charges The impact of these after-tax charges to our

2011 diluted net earnings per share was partially offset by

share repurchases resulting in lower outstanding shares in

2011 compared to 2010

We generated $1335 million of operating cash flows during

2012 compared to $1287 million of operating cash flows dur

ing 2011 We ended the year with $1194 million of cash and

cash equivalents and $3080 million of total debt We also

10
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repurchased 27.7 million shares of our common stock for $1.1

billion at an average repurchase price of $38.23 per share and

our Board of Directors authorized 2012 quarterly cash dividend

payments of $0.23 per share representing 10% per share

increase over the 2011 quarterly cash dividends During 2011

we repurchased 18.3 million shares of our common stock for

$775 million at an average repurchase price of $42.30 per share

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Certain new accounting standards may become effective for us

in fiscal year 2013 and future periods upon finalization

Information regarding new accounting pronouncements that

impacted 2012 or our historical consolidated financial state

ments and related disclosures is included in Note ito the

Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND ESTIMATES

Preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accor

dance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States U.S GAAP requires us to adopt various

accounting policies and to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and

accompanying notes Our significant accounting policies are

disclosed in Note ito the Consolidated Financial Statements

On an ongoing basis we evaluate our estimates and assump

tions including those related to our accounts receivable allow

ance for doubtful accounts inventory reserves goodwill and

other intangible assets income taxes litigation reserves and

insurance receivables and stock-based compensation We base

our estimates on historical experience and various other assump

tions that are believed to be reasonable under the circum

stances and the results form the basis for making judgments

about the reported values of assets liabilities and expenses

Actual results may differ from these estimates We believe that

the following represent our most critical accounting estimates

Accounts Receivable Allowance for Doubtful Accounts We

grant credit to customers in the normal course of business and

generally do not require collateral or any other security to sup

port our accounts receivable We maintain an allowance for

doubtful accounts for potential credit losses which primarily

consists of reserves for specific customer balances that we

believe may not be collectible We determine the adequacy of

this allowance by regularly reviewing the age of accounts

receivable customer financial conditions and credit histories

and current economic conditions In some developed markets

and in many emerging markets payment of certain accounts

receivable balances are made by the individual countries

healthcare systems for which payment is dependent to some

extent upon the political and economic environment within

those countries For example in Greece we sold our products

through distributor through early 2012 The Greek govern

ment bond curtailment potential risk of government default

and related austerity measures negatively impacted the sol

vency and liquidity of our Greek distributor in 2011 raising sig

nificant doubt regarding the collectability of our outstanding

receivable balance As result we recognized $57 million

accounts receivable allowance charge in the consolidated

financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31

2011 related to this distributor which was subsequently written

off in 2012 We also recognized $9 million allowance in fiscal

year 2011 for increased collection risk associated with cus

tomer in Europe No significant accounts receivable allowance

charges were recognized during fiscal year 2012 As of

December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 the allowance

for doubtful accounts was $47 million and $101 million

respectively Although we consider our allowance for doubtful

accounts to be adequate if the financial condition of our cus

tomers or the individual countries healthcare systems were to

deteriorate and impair their ability to make payments to us

additional allowances may be required in future periods

Inventory Reserves We value inventory at the lower of cost or

market with cost determined using the first-in first-out

method We maintain reserves for excess and obsolete inven

tory based on forecasted product sales new product introduc

tions by us or our competitors product expirations and

historical experience The inventory reserves we recognize are

based on our estimates of how these factors are expected to

impact the amount and value of inventory we expect to sell

The markets in which we operate are highly competitive and

characterized by rapid product development and technological

change putting our products at risk of losing market share and

or becoming obsolete We monitor our inventory reserves on an

ongoing basis and although we consider our inventory reserves

to be adequate we may be required to recognize additional

inventory reserves if future demand or market conditions are

less favorable than we have estimated

Goodwill and Intangible Assets When we acquire business

the purchase price is allocated as applicable between identifi

able intangible assets tangible assets and goodwill

Determining the portion of the purchase price allocated to

intangible assets requires us to make significant estimates

Our intangible assets consist of purchased technology and pat

ents IPRD customer lists and relationships trademarks and

tradenames licenses and distribution agreements IPRD and
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certain trademark assets related to our AGA Medical acquisi

tion have been classified as indefinite-lived intangible assets

All other identifiable intangible assets are being amortized

using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives

ranging from three to 20 years We review our other intangible

assets annually for impairment or if changes in circumstance

or the occurrence of events suggest the carrying value may not

be recoverable Intangible assets net of accumulated amortiza

tion were $804 million at December 29 2012 and $856 mil

lion at December 31 2011 respectively

IPRD is an intangible asset attributable to those projects for

which the related products have not yet reached technological

feasibility and have no future alternative use The primary basis

for determining the technological feasibility of these projects at

the time of acquisition is obtaining regulatory approval to mar

ket the underlying products in an applicable geographic region

IPRD acquired in business acquisition is subject to FASBs

ASC Topic 805 Business Combinations which requires the fair

value of IPRD to be capitalized as an indefinite-lived intangi

ble asset until completion of the IPRD project or abandon

ment Upon completion of the development project generally

when regulatory approval to market the product is obtained

acquired IPRD assets are amortized over their estimated use

ful life If the IPRD projects are abandoned the related PRD
assets would likely be impaired and written down to fair value

We use the income approach to establish the fair value of iden

tifiable intangible assets including IPRD as of the acquisition

date This approach establishes fair value by estimating the

after-tax cash flows attributable to project or intangible asset

over its estimated useful life and discounting these after-tax

cash flows back to present value We base our revenue

assumptions on estimates of relevant market sizes expected

market growth and trends in technology as well as anticipated

product introductions by competitors In arriving at the value of

an IPRD project we consider among other factors the stage

of completion the complexity of the work to complete the

costs incurred the projected cost of completion the contribu

tion of core technologies and other acquired assets the

expected introduction date and the estimated useful life of the

technology The discount rate used is determined at the time of

acquisition and includes consideration of the assessed risk of

the project not being developed to commercial feasibility In

arriving at the value of an intangible asset we consider the

underlying products and estimated useful life of the technology

projected future product sales legal agreements patent litiga

tion and anticipated product introductions by competitors The

discount rate used is determined at the time of acquisition and

includes consideration of the assessed risk of the underlying

products future sales

At the time of acquisition we expect all acquired IPRD will

reach technological feasibility but there can be no assurance

that the commercial viability of these projects will actually be

achieved The nature of the efforts to develop the acquired

technologies into commercially viable products consists princi

pally of planning designing and conducting clinical trials nec

essary to obtain regulatory approvals The risks associated with

achieving commercialization include but are not limited to

delay or failure to obtain regulatory approvals to conduct clini

cal trials failure of clinical trials delay or failure to obtain

required market clearances and patent litigation If commercial

viability
is not achieved we would not realize the original esti

mated financial benefits expected for these projects We fund

all costs to complete IPRD projects with internally generated

cash flows

Our indefinite-lived intangible assets include trademarks and

tradenames and our acquired IPRD discussed previously

which are assessed for impairment annually or more frequently

if changes in circumstance or the occurrence of events suggest

impairment exists The assessment for impairment requires us

to make several judgments about fair value which include the

consideration of qualitative factors such as macroeconomic

conditions industry and market considerations cost factors

financial performance entity specific events changes in net

assets and sustained decrease in share price Additional judg

ment may also be required including the consideration of pro

jected future cash flows and the use of an appropriate

risk-adjusted discount rate Our indefinite-lived intangible

assets were $158 million and $169 million at December 29
2012 and December 31 2011 respectively Of these amounts

$109 million and $120 million was capitalized as indefinite-

lived IPRD intangible assets respectively

Goodwill recognized in connection with business acquisition

represents the excess of the aggregate purchase price over the

fair value of net assets acquired Goodwill is assessed for

impairment annually or more frequently if changes in circum

stance or the occurrence of events suggest impairment exists

The assessment for impairment requires us to make several

judgments about fair value which include the consideration of

qualitative factors such as macroeconomic conditions industry

and market considerations cost factors financial performance

entity specific events changes in net assets and sustained

decrease in share price Our judgments associated with the

goodwill impairment assessment are considered critical due to

the amount of goodwill recorded on our consolidated balance

sheets Additional judgment may also be required including

the consideration of projected future cash flows and the use of

an appropriate risk-adjusted discount rate Goodwill was

$2961 million at December 29 2012 and $2953 million at

December 31 2011
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Income Taxes As part of the process of preparing our consoli

dated financial statements we are required to estimate our

income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate

This process involves estimating the actual current tax expense

as well as assessing temporary differences in the treatment of

items for tax and financial accounting purposes These timing

differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities which

are included in our consolidated balance sheets We assess the

likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from

future taxable income and if it is considered more-likely-than-

not that we will not realize some portion of our deferred tax

assets valuation allowance is recognized to reduce the carry

ing value of the deferred tax assets Gross deferred tax assets

were $778 million at December 29 2012 and $660 million at

December 31 2011 We have established valuation allowances

of $228 million and $157 million at December 29 2012 and

December 31 2011 respectively to reduce deferred tax assets

associated with net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards

because we do not believe it is more-likely-than-not that these

assets will be fully realized

We have not provided U.S income taxes on certain of our non-

U.S subsidiaries undistributed earnings as such amounts are

intended to be reinvested outside the United States indefinitely

However should we change our business and tax strategies in

the future and decide to repatriate portion of these earnings

to one of our U.S subsidiaries including cash maintained by

these non-U.S subsidiaries additional U.S tax liabilities would

be recognized It is not practical to estimate the amount of

additional U.S tax liabilities we would incur

We record our income tax provisions based on our knowledge

of all relevant facts and circumstances including the existing

tax laws our experience with previous settlement agreements

the status of current tax audits and examinations and our

understanding of how the tax authorities view certain relevant

industry and commercial matters We recognize liabilities for

anticipated tax audit issues in the United States and other tax

jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether and the extent

to which additional taxes will be due Although we recognize

income tax liabilities in accordance with ASC 740 Income

Taxes regarding uncertainty in income taxes our accruals rep

resent accounting estimates that are subject to the inherent

uncertainties associated with the tax audit process and there

fore include certain contingencies The finalization of the tax

audit process across the various tax authorities including fed

eral state and foreign often takes many years We adjust our

income tax liabilities in light of changing facts and circum

stances however due to the complexity of some of these

uncertainties the ultimate resolution may result in payment

that is materially different from our current estimate of the tax

liabilities If our estimate of tax liabilities proves to be less than

the ultimate assessment an additional income tax expense

would result Specifically in 2012 we recognized $46 million of

additional income tax expense related to settlement reserve

for certain prior year tax positions associated with IRS examina

tions that are currently at the appellate level At December 29

2012 our liability
for unrecognized tax benefits was $314 mil

lion and our accrual for interest and penalties was $69 million

At December 31 2011 our liability for unrecognized tax bene

fits was $205 million and our accrual for interest and penalties

was $35 million

Litigation Reserves and Insurance Receivables We operate in

an industry that is susceptible to significant product liability

and intellectual property claims As result we are involved in

number of legal proceedings the outcomes of which are not

in our complete control and may not be known for extended

periods of time In accordance with ASC Topic 450

Contingencies we record liability in our consolidated financial

statements for costs related to claims including future legal

costs settlements and judgments where we have assessed that

loss is probable and an amount can be reasonably estimated

Product
liability

claims may be brought by individuals seeking

relief for themselves or increasingly by groups seeking to rep

resent class In addition claims may be asserted against us

in the future related to events that are not known to us at the

present time Our significant legal proceedings are discussed in

detail in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

While it is not possible to predict the outcome for most of the

legal proceedings discussed in Note the costs associated

with such proceedings could have material adverse effect on

our consolidated earnings financial position or cash flows of

future period

We record receivable from our legacy product liability insur

ance carriers for amounts expected to be recovered This

includes amounts for legal matters where we have incurred

defense costs or where we have recognized liability
for proba

ble and estimable future legal costs settlements or judgments

We record receivable for the amount of insurance we expect

to recover based on our assessment of the specific insurance

policies the nature of the claim our experience with similar

claims and our assessment of collectability based on our insur

ers financial condition To the extent our insurance carriers

ultimately do not reimburse us either because such costs are

deemed to be outside the scope of our product liability insur

ance policies or because our insurers may not be able to meet
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their payment obligations to us the related losses we incur

relating to these unreimbursed costs could have material

adverse effect on our consolidated earnings or cash flows Our

receivable from legacy product liability insurance carriers was

$3 million at December 29 2012 and $15 million at December

31 2011 During 2012 and 2011 we did not record any losses

on our legacy product liability insurance receivables and

received insurance reimbursement of $1 million and $11 mil

lion respectively

Stock-Based Compensation Under the fair value recognition

provisions of ASC Topic 718 Compensation Stock

Compensation ASC Topic 718 we measure stock-based com

pensation cost at the grant date based on the fair value of the

award and recognize the compensation expense over the requi

site service period vesting period into cost of sales research

and development expense or selling general and administra

tive expense in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings

We use the Black-Scholes standard option pricing model

Black-Scholes model to determine the grant date fair value

of stock options and employee stock purchase rights The

awards grant date fair value using the Black-Scholes model

is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions of other

variables including projected employee stock option exercise

behaviors expected option life risk-free interest rate

expected dividend yield and expected volatility
of our stock

price in future periods The grant date fair value of restricted

stock units and restricted stock awards is based on the closing

stock price on the grant date

We analyze historical employee exercise and termination data

to estimate the expected life assumption We believe that his

torical data currently represents the best estimate of the

expected life of new employee option We also stratify our

employee population based upon distinctive exercise behavior

patterns The risk-free interest rate we use is based on the U.S

Treasury zero-coupon yield curve on the grant date for matu

rity similar to the expected life of the options Our dividend

yield assumption is based on the expected annual dividend

yield on the grant date We calculate our expected volatility

assumption by equally weighting historical and implied volatil

ity
We believe that future volatility experience over the

expected life of the option may differ from short-term volatility

experience and therefore we utilize an equal weighting of both

historical and implied volatility to provide the best estimate of

expected volatility over the expected life of the option

The amount of stock-based compensation expense we recog

nize during period is based on the portion of the awards that

are ultimately expected to vest We estimate pre-vesting award

forfeitures at the time of grant by analyzing historical data and

revising those estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfei

tures differ from those estimates Ultimately the total expense

recognized over the vesting period will equal the fair value of

awards that actually vest

If factors change and we employ different assumptions for esti

mating stock-based compensation expense in future periods or

if we decide to use different option pricing model the

expense in future periods may differ significantly from what we

have recorded in the current period and could materially affect

our net earnings and net earnings per share of future period

ACQjjIsITIONs AND MINORITY

INVESTMENT

Acquisitions On November 18 2010 we completed our

acquisition of AGA Medical NASDAQ AGAM acquiring all of

its outstanding shares for $20.80 per share in cash and stock

transaction valued at $1.1 billion which consisted of $549 mil

lion in net cash consideration and 13.6 million shares of St

Jude Medical common stock The transaction was consum

mated through an exchange offer followed by merger

Acquiring AGA Medical based in Plymouth Minnesota

expanded our cardiovascular product portfolio and future prod

uct pipeline to treat structural heart defects and vascular abnor

malities through minimally invasive transcatheter treatments

On July 2010 we completed our acquisition of LightLab

Imaging for $93 million in net cash consideration LightLab

Imaging was based in Westford Massachusetts and develops

manufactures and markets OCT for coronary imaging applica

tions The LightLab Imaging acquisition expanded our product

portfolio and complements our fractional flow reserve FFR
technology acquired as part of our Radi Medical Systems AB

acquisition in December 2008

Minority Investment In September 2010 we made an equity

investment of $60 million in CardioMEMS Inc CardioMEMS

privately-held company that is focused on the development of

wireless monitoring technology that can be placed directly

into the pulmonary artery to assess cardiac performance via

measurement of pulmonary artery pressure The investment

agreement resulted in 19% ownership interest and provided

us with the exclusive right but not the obligation to acquire

CardioMEMS for an additional payment of $375 million during

the period that extends through the completion of certain regu

latory milestones
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SEGMENT PERFORMANCE

While our 2012 business realignment was announced and effec

tive August 30 2012 we continued to report under our legacy

operating segment structure for internal management financial

forecasting and reporting purposes through the end of fiscal year

2012 Therefore based on U.S GAAP our four operating seg

ments are Cardiac Rhythm Management CRM Cardiovascular

CV Atrial Fibrillation AF and Neuromodulation NMD The

primary products produced by each operating segment are

CRM tachycardia implantable cardioverter defibrillator sys

tems ICDs and bradycardia pacemaker systems pacemakers

CV vascular products which include vascular closure prod

ucts pressure measurement guidewires optical coherence

tomography OCT imaging products vascular plugs and other

vascular accessories and structural heart products which

include heart valve replacement and repair products and struc

tural heart defect devices AF electrophysiology EP intro

ducers and catheters advanced cardiac mapping navigation

and recording systems and ablation systems and NMD
neurostimulation products which include spinal cord and deep

brain stimulation devices

We currently aggregate our four operating segments into two

reportable segments based upon their similar operational and

economic characteristics CRM/NMD and CV/AF As discussed

in the Overviewsection we will report under our new organiza

tional structure effective the beginning of fiscal year 2013 Net

sales of our reportable segments include end-customer reve

nues from the sale of products they each develop and manu

facture or distribute The costs included in each of the

reportable segments operating results include the direct costs

of the products sold to customers and operating expenses

managed by each of the reportable segments Certain

expenses managed by our selling and corporate functions

including all stock-based compensation expense impairment

charges certain acquisition-related expenses IPRD charges

excise tax expense and special charges have not been

recorded in the individual reportable segments As result

reportable segment operating profit is not representative of the

operating profit of the products in these reportable segments

The following table presents net sales and operating profit by

reportable segment in millions

CRM/NMD CV/AF Other Total

Fiscal Year 2012

Net sales $3277 $2226 $5503

Operating profit 2185 1241 2326 1100

Fiscal Year 2011

Net sales 3453 2159 5612

Operating profit 2145 1144 2174 1115

Fiscal Year 2010

Net sales 3420 1744 5164

Operating profit 2125 968 1817 1276

The following discussion of the changes in our net sales is pro

vided by class of similar products within our four operating seg

ments which is the primary focus of our sales activities

CARDIAC RHYTHM MANAGEMENT

in millions 2012 2011 2010

lcD systems $1743 $1824 $1820 4.4% 0.2%

Pacemaker systems 1111 1210 1220 8.2% O.8%

$2854 $3034 $3040 5.9% 0.2%

Cardiac Rhythm Management 2012 net sales decreased 6% to

$2854 million as result of continued CRM market contrac

tion and unfavorable foreign currency translation Foreign cur

rency translation had $74 million unfavorable impact on

2012 net sales compared to the prior year 2012 lCD net sales

of $1743 million decreased 4% compared to 2011 primarily

driven by unfavorable foreign currency and decline in the

U.S lCD market which continues to contract at mid single-

digit percentage rate from the 2011 comparable period The

U.S lCD market continues to be negatively impacted by

decline in implant volumes and pricing resulting from the pub
lication of an lCD utilization article in January 2011 in the

JAMA subsequent hospital investigation by the DOJ and sig

nificant increase in hospital ownership of physician practices

Facing this market contraction our U.S 2012 lCD net sales of

$1016 million decreased 3% which was at slightly lower

rate than the rest of the market Partially offsetting the U.S lCD

market contraction we experienced benefit from sales of our

Unify Quadra Cardiac Resynchronization Therapy Defibrillator

CRT-D and Quartet Left Ventricular Quadripolar Pacing Lead

which was approved by the U.S Food and Drug Administration

FDA in November 2011 and is the industrys first quadripolar

pacing system Sales of our Assura portfolio of ICDs and

CRT-Ds as well as our Ellips lCD which were approved by

the FDA in May 2012 also provided benefit to our 2012 net

sales Internationally 2012 lCD net sales of $727 million

decreased 6% compared to 2011 due to $41 million of unfa

vorable foreign currency translation percentage points pri

marily due to the strengthening U.S Dollar against the Euro

Pacemaker systems 2012 net sales decreased 8% to $1111

million compared to 2011 In the United States our 2012

pacemaker net sales of $451 million decreased 10% compared

to 2011 Internationally our 2012 pacemaker net sales of $660

million decreased 7% compared to 2011 Foreign currency

translation had $33 million percentage points unfavorable

impact during 2012 compared to 2011 Our pacemaker sys

tems 2012 net sales have also decreased as result of com
petitive pressures from continued market progression towards

implanting more magnetic resonance imaging MRI compati

ble pacemakers particularly in the U.S and Japan Additionally

the market has experienced slowdown in implant procedures

2012 vs

2011%

Change

2011 vs

2010

change
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particularly in Europe with its economic disruptions negatively

impacting procedural volumes We introduced the AccentMRl

pacemaker family in Europe and certain markets in Asia during

2011 and we expect to launch our AccentMRl pacemaker in

Japan during the second half of 2013

Cardiac Rhythm Management 2011 net sales were flat com

pared to 2010 as result of CRM market contraction in the

United States Foreign currency translation had $92 million

favorable impact on 2011 net sales compared to the prior year

2011 lCD net sales of $1824 million were flat during 2011

compared to 2010 Internationally 2011 lCD net sales of $777

million increased 14% compared to 2010 due to $47 million of

favorable foreign currency translation percentage points

and the second quarter 2011 launch of our Unify cardiac

resynchronization therapy defibrillator CRT-D and Fortify

lCD in Japan The Unify CRT-D and Fortify lCD are smaller

deliver more energy and have longer battery life than compa
rable conventional devices Our 2011 lCD net sales in the

United States of $1047 million decreased 8% compared to the

prior year The overall decrease was driven by the loss of the

incremental $40 million benefit on our 2010 U.S CD net sales

resulting from suspension of competitors product sales

The 2011 lCD market in the United States was also negatively

impacted by decline in implant volumes and pricing from the

JAMA lCD utilization article subsequent hospital investigation

by the DOJ and significant increase in hospital ownership of

physician practices all discussed previously Pacemaker sys

tems 2011 net sales of $1210 million decreased 1% com

pared to 2010 In the United States our 2011 pacemaker net

sales of $500 million decreased 5% compared to 2010

Internationally our 2011 pacemaker net sales of $710 million

increased 2% compared to 2010 Foreign currency translation

had $45 million favorable impact percentage points on

pacemaker net sales during 2011 compared to 2010

CARDIOVASCULAR

in millions 2012 2011 2010

Vasculsr products 716 740 672

Structural heart

products 612 597 364 2.5%

$1328 $1337 $1036 0.7%

Cardiovascular 2012 net sales decreased 1% to $1328 million

compared to 2011 Foreign currency translation had $36 mil

lion unfavorable impact on 2012 CV net sales compared to

2011 Vascular products 2012 net sales decreased 3% com

pared to 2011 primarily due to the termination of distribution

contract in Japan which negatively impacted our 2012 vascular

product net sales by 7% Foreign currency translation also

2011 vs

2010

change

10.1%

64.0%

29.1%

unfavorably impacted vascular products 2012 net sales by $17

million compared to 2011 These decreases were partially off

set by increases in sales of our OCT products led by our

llumien hardware platform which combines both OCT and

FFR capabilities into single system as well as sales volume

increases in our FFR technology products as we continue to

penetrate the market Structural heart products net sales

increased 3% during 2012 compared to 2011 driven by an

increase in our tissue heart valve sales volumes led by our

Trifecta product line of pericardial stented tissue valves

Overall tissue heart valve sales volumes increased 20% during

2012 compared to 2011 Foreign currency translation unfavor

ably impacted structural heart products net sales by $19 mil

lion during 2012 compared to 2011

Cardiovascular 2011 net sales increased 29% to $1337 million

compared to 2010 Foreign currency translation had $54 mil

lion favorable impact on 2011 CV net sales compared to 2010

Vascular products net sales increased 10% compared to 2010

primarily due to incremental net sales of vascular plugs and

OCT products Favorable foreign currency translation of $35

million also contributed to the increase partially offset by

decreased sales volumes associated with our Angio-Seal

active closure devices Structural heart products net sales

increased 64% due to the incremental AGA Medical net sales

of AMPLATZER occluder products and net sales growth asso

ciated with our Trifecta tissue valve which was launched in

the United States after receiving U.S FDA approval in April

2011 Foreign currency translation also favorably impacted

structural heart products net sales by $19 million compared

to 2010

ATRIAL FIBRILLATION

in millions 2012 2011

Atrial fibrillation

products $898 $822 $708 9.2% 16.1%

Our access diagnosis visualization recording and ablation

products assist physicians in diagnosing and treating atrial

fibrillation and other irregular heart rhythms AF 2012 net sales

increased 9% to $898 million during 2012 compared to 2011

due to the continued increase in EP catheter ablation proce

dures the continued market penetration of our EnSite Velocity

System and related connectivity tools EnSite Connect EnSite

Courier and EnSite Derexi modules and our intracardiac

echocardiography imaging technique which allows physicans

to get clear picture of the inner workings of the heart through

an ultrasound probe Foreign currency translation had an unfa

vorable impact on AF net sales of $20 million during 2012

compared to 2011

2012 vs

20 11%

Change

3.2%

2012 vs 2Ollvs

2011% 2010%

2010 Change change
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Atrial Fibrillation 2011 net sales increased 16% to $822 million

compared to 2010 net sales due to the increase in EP catheter

ablation procedures the continued market penetration of our

EnSite Velocity System and related connectivity tools and the

rollout of EP irrigated ablation catheters in the U.S Safire

BLU and internationally Therapy Cool Flex Safire Blu

Duo and Therapy Cool Path Duo bi-directional Foreign

currency translation had favorable impact on AF net sales of

$30 million compared to 2010

NEUROMODULATION

in millions 2012 2011

Neuromodulation

products $423 $419 $380 1.0% 10.3%

Neuromodulation 2012 net sales increased 1% to $423 million

during 2012 due to continued market acceptance of our prod

ucts and sales growth in our neurostimulation devices that help

manage chronic pain Foreign currency translation had $7

million unfavorable impact on NMD net sales during 2012

compared to 2011

Neuromodulation 2011 net sales increased 10% to $419 mil

lion compared to 2010 net sales The increase in NMD net

sales was driven by the continued market acceptance of our

neurostimulation devices that help manage chronic pain

Specifically 2011 international NMD net sales grew 30%
driven by sales growth in the Eon Mini platform and growing

market acceptance of the Epiducer Lead Delivery system

which gives physicians the ability to place multiple neurostimu

lation leads through single entry point Foreign currency

translation had $7 million favorable impact on NMD net sales

during 2011 compared to 2010

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

NET SALES

in millions 2012 2011 2010

Netsales $5503 $5612 $5164 1.9% 8.7%

Overall 2012 net sales decreased 2% compared to 2011

Foreign currency translation had an unfavorable impact of

$137 million or 2% on 2012 net sales compared to 2011 due

primarily to the strengthening of the U.S Dollar against the

Euro CRM net sales drove the decrease in 2012 net sales due

to the continued contraction of the lCD and pacemaker mar
kets world-wide These decreases were partially offset by AF

net sales increases

Total 2011 net sales increased 9% compared to 2010 While

our 2011 U.S net sales remained flat compared to 2010 our

2011 international net sales increased 18% compared to the

prior year Foreign currency translation comparisons increased

our 2011 net sales by $183 million compared to 2010 primarily

due to the weakening of the U.S Dollar against the Euro and

Japanese Yen

Foreign currency translation relating to our international opera

tions can have significant impact on our operating results

from year to year The two main currencies influencing our

operating results are typically the Euro and the Japanese Yen

As discussed previously foreign currency translation had

$137 million unfavorable impact on 2012 net sales while the

translation impact in 2011 had $183 million favorable impact

on net sales compared to 2010 These impacts to net sales are

not indicative of the net earnings impact of foreign currency

translation due to partially offsetting foreign currency transla

tion impacts on cost of sales and operating expenses

Net sales by geographic location of the customer were as

follows in millions

NetSales 2012 2011 2010

United States $2594 $2648 $2655

International

Europe 1432 1559 1314

Japan 665 641 553

Asia Pacific 456 416 324

Other 356 348 318

2909 2964 2509

$5503 $5612 $5164

GROSS PROFIT

in millions 2012 2011 2010

Gross profit $3965 $4079 $3754

Percentage of net sales 72.1% 72.7% 72.7%

Gross
profit for 2012 totaled $3965 million or 72.1% of net

sales compared to $4079 million or 72.7% of net sales in

2011 Our 2012 gross profit percentage was negatively

impacted by special charges of $93 million or 1.6 percentage

points due to realigning our product divisions and centralizing

certain support functions ongoing restructuring charges

related to our 2011 restructuring plan IESD litigation and field

action costs and inventory write-offs Special charges of $47

million in 2011 negatively impacted our gross profit by 0.8 per

centage points due to our 2011 restructuring actions to realign

certain activities in our CRM business and our sales and selling

support organizations Refer to Special Charges within the

Results of Operations section for more detailed discussion of

these charges Additionally U.S GAAP requires inventory

acquired in business acquisition to be recorded at fair value

which closely approximates normal end-customer selling price

2012vs 2Ollvs

2011% 2010%
2010 Change Change

2012 vs

20 11%

Change

2011 vs

2010

Change
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This resulted in higher cost of sales for AGA Medical and

LightLab Imaging products sold in both 2011 and 2010 which

negatively impacted our 2011 gross profit by approximately 0.5

percentage points

Gross profit
for 2011 totaled $4079 million or 72.7% of net

sales compared $3754 million or 72.7% of net sales in 2010

Special charges in 2011 negatively impacted our gross profit by

0.8 percentage points due to our 2011 restructuring actions dis

cussed previously Special charges in 2010 negatively impacted

our gross profit by 0.5 percentage points due to inventory obso

lescence charges primarily related to excess legacy lCD inven

tory that was not expected to be sold due to the launch of our

Unify CRT-D and Fortify lCD devices Our market demand

for these devices resulted in more rapid adoption than we

expected or historically experienced Additionally as discussed

previously the inventory acquired in our AGA Medical and

Lightlab Imaging acquisitions was required to be recorded at fair

value and resulted in higher cost of sales for AGA Medical and

LightLab Imaging products sold in both 2011 and 2010 which

negatively impacted our gross profit by approximately 0.5 and

0.2 percentage points respectively

SELLING GENERAL AND ADMINtSTRATIVE

SGA EXPENSE

in millions

Selling general and

administrative expense

Percentage of net sales

2012 2011 2010

$1891 $2084 $1818

34.4% 37.1% 35.2%

SGA expense for 2012 totaled $1891 million or 34.4% of net

sales compared to $2084 million or 37.1% of net sales in

2011 The decrease in our 2012 SGA expense as percent of

net sales was primarily driven by cost savings initiatives includ

ing the 2012 realignment plan initiated in August 2012 inte

gration of the AGA Medial business into our CV division and the

integration of our Neuromodulation domestic sales organization

into our United States selling organization Additionally SGA
expense for 2011 included $25 million of contract termination

and international integration charges related to our AGA

Medical acquisition $15 million of contributions made to the

St Jude Medical Foundation and $66 million of accounts

receivable allowance charges for the increased collection risk

associated with certain customer accounts receivables in

Europe for combined SGA impact of 1.9 percentage points

SGA expense for 2011 totaled $2084 million or 37.1% of net

sales compared to $1818 million or 35.2% of net sales in

2010 As discussed previously SGA expense for 2011

increased as percent of net sales by 1.9 percentage points

due to contract termination and international integration

charges related to our AGA Medical acquisition contributions

to the St Jude Medical Foundation and accounts receivable

allowance charges compared to 2010

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT RD EXPENSE

in millions

Research and development expense

Percentage of net sales

2012 2011 2010

$676 $705 $631

12.3% 12.6% 12.2%

RD expense in 2012 totaled $676 million or 12.3% of net

sales compared to $705 million or 12.6% of net sales in

2011 and $631 million or 12.2% of net sales in 2010 RD
expense as percent of net sales has remained relatively con

sistent reflecting our continuing commitment to fund future

long-term growth opportunities We will continue to balance

delivering short-term results with our investments in long-term

growth drivers

PURCHASED IN-PROCESS RESEARCH AND

DEVELOPMENT IPRD CHARGES

in millions 2012 2011 2010

Purchased in-process research

and development charges $4 $12

During 2011 we recorded IPRD charges of $4 million in con

junction with the purchase of intellectual property in our CRM

operating segment During 2010 we recorded IPRD charges

of $12 million in conjunction with the purchase of cardiovascu

lar-related intellectual property As the related technological

feasibility had not yet been reached and such technology had

no future alternative use the purchases of these intellectual

property assets were expensed as IPRD

SPECIAL CHARGES

in millions 2012 2011 2010

cost of sales special charges 93 47 $28

Special charges 298 171 17

$391 $218 $45

We recognize certain transactions and events as special

charges in our consolidated financial statements These

charges such as restructuring charges impairment charges

and certain settlement or litigation charges result from facts

and circumstances that vary in frequency and impact on our

results of operations In order to enhance segment comparabil

ity
and reflect managements focus on the ongoing operations

special charges are not reflected in the individual reportable

segments operating results

18



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2012 Business Realignment Plan During 2012 we incurred

charges of $185 million from the realignment of our product

divisions into two new operating divisions CATD combining

our legacy CV and AF divisions and IESD combining our leg

acy CRM and NMD divisions In addition we centralized cer

tain support functions including information technology

human resources legal business development and certain

marketing functions The organizational changes are part of

comprehensive plan to accelerate our growth reduce costs

leverage economies of scale and increase investment in prod

uct development Of the $185 million recorded as special

charges $24 million was recognized in cost of sales In con

nection with the realignment we recognized $109 million of

severance costs and other termination benefits after manage
ment determined that such severance and benefit costs were

probable and estimable The 2012 business realignment plan

reduced our workforce by approximately 5% We also recog

nized $17 million of inventory write-offs associated with discon

tinued CATD product lines and $41 million of accelerated

depreciation charges and fixed asset write-offs primarily asso

ciated with information technology assets no longer expected to

be utilized or with limited remaining useful life Additionally

we recognized $18 million of other restructuring costs which

included $7 million of contract termination costs and $11 mil

lion of other costs

2011 Restructuring Plan During 2011 we incurred charges

totaling $162 million related to restructuring actions to realign

certain activities in our CRM business and sales and selling

support organizations These actions included phasing out

CRM manufacturing and RD operations in Sweden reduc

tions in our workforce and rationalizing product lines Of the

$162 million recorded as special charges $47 million was rec

ognized in cost of sales In connection with the staged phase-

out of CRM manufacturing and RD operations in Sweden we

began recognizing severance costs and other termination ben

efits for over 650 employees totaling $82 million during 2011

Additionally we recognized $20 million of inventory obsoles

cence charges primarily associated with the rationalization of

product lines across our business We also recorded $26 mil

lion of impairment and accelerated depreciation charges of

which $12 million related to an impairment charge to write-

down our CRM manufacturing facility in Sweden to its fair

value Additionally we recognized $34 million of other restruc

turing charges primarily associated with CRM restructuring

actions $13 million of pension settlement charges associated

with the termination of Swedens defined benefit pension plan

and $4 million of idle facility costs related to transitioning man

ufacturing operations out of Sweden as well as $7 million of

contract termination costs and $10 million of other costs

During 2012 we incurred additional charges totaling $102 mil

lion related to the restructuring actions initiated during 2011

Of the $102 million recorded as special charges $44 million

was recorded in cost of sales We recognized severance costs

and other termination benefits of $38 million for an additional

100 employees after management determined that such sever

ance and benefit costs were probable and estimable We also

recognized $13 million of inventory obsolescence charges pri

marily related with the rationalization of product lines in our

CRM and NMD businesses Additionally we recognized $51

million of other restructuring charges which included $37 mil

lion of restructuring related charges of which $13 million

related to idle facility costs in Sweden The remaining charges

included $8 million of contract termination costs and $6 million

of other costs

Other Special Charges

Inventory Charges During 2010 we recorded $28 million

of inventory obsolescence charges to cost of sales primarily

related to excess legacy lCD inventory that was not expected

to be sold due to our launch of our Unify CRT-D and Fortify

lCD devices Our market demand for these devices resulted

in more rapid adoption than expected or historically experi

enced from other lCD product launches

Intangible Asset Impairment Charges During 2012 we recog

nized $23 million impairment charge for certain developed

technology intangible assets in our NMD division as our

updated expectations for the future cash flows of the related

product lines decreased ultimately resulting in the related

assets fair value falling below carrying value Additionally we

discontinued certain AF and CV product lines and recognized

$8 million of impairment charges to fully impair the related

developed technology intangible assets We also recognized $2

million of intangible asset impairments associated with cus

tomer relationship intangible assets acquired in connection

with legacy acquisitions of businesses involved in the distribu

tion of our products Due to the changing dynamics of the U.S

healthcare market specifically as it relates to hospital purchas

ing practices we determined that these intangible assets had

no future discrete cash flows and were fully impaired

During 2011 we recorded $52 million of intangible asset

impairment charges of which $49 million related to customer

relationship intangible assets acquired in connection with leg

acy acquisitions of businesses involved in the distribution of

our products As discussed previously due to the changing

dynamics of the U.S healthcare market specifically as it

relates to hospital purchasing practices we determined that

these intangible assets had no future discrete cash flows and

recognized $49 million impairment charge

19



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Settlement Charges During 2012 we agreed to settle dis

pute on licensed technology for our Angio-Seal vascular clo

sure devices In connection with this settlement which

resolved all disputed claims and included fully-paid perpetual

license we recognized $28 million settlement expense

Litigation Charges During 2012 we recognized $16 million of

litigation charges for future probable and estimable legal costs

related to outstanding matters associated with IESD field

actions During 2011 we recognized $4 million legal settle

ment charge after reaching an agreement with the Office of

Inspector General of the Department of Health and Human

Services to settle previously disclosed investigation initiated in

December 2008 related to allegations that we failed to properly

apply certain warranty credits During 2010 we recognized

$17 million legal settlement charge after reaching an agree

ment with the DOJ in Boston to settle previously disclosed

investigation initiated in 2005 related to an industry-wide

review of post-market clinical studies and registries

Field Action Charges During 2012 we recognized special

charges of $27 million of which $25 million was charged to

cost of sales for costs primarily related to the 2012 field action

associated with certain neuromodulation implantable pulse

generator charging systems

OTHER INCOME EXPENSE NET

in millions 2012 2011 2010

Interest income

Interest expense 73 70 67

Other 27 30

Total other income/expense net $95 $96 $68

The unfavorable change in other income expense during both

2012 and 2011 compared to 2010 was due to $31 million and

$28 million respectively of Puerto Rico excise tax expense

recognized in other expense The Puerto Rico excise tax

became effective in 2011 and we incur this tax on most pur

chases made from our Puerto Rico subsidiary This excise tax

is almost entirely offset by the resulting foreign tax credits or

income tax deductions which are recognized as benefit to

income tax expense The unfavorable change in other income

expense was partially offset during 2012 compared to 2011

and 2010 as result of $14 million in realized gains recognized

from the sale of available-for-sale securities during 2012

INCOME TAXES

as percent of pre-tax income

Effective tax rate

2012 2011 2010

25.2% 19.0% 249%

Our effective tax rate differs from our U.S federal statutory

35% tax rate due to certain operations that are subject to for

eign taxes that are different from the U.S federal statutory rate

state and local taxes and tax incentives Our effective tax rate is

also impacted by discrete factors or events such as special

charges IPRD charges tax law changes or the resolution of

audits by tax authorities

Our effective tax rate was 25.2% in 2012 compared to 19.0%

in 2011 and 24.9% in 2010 Our effective tax rate for 2012

does not include the benefit of the federal research and devel

opment tax credit RD tax credit as the RD tax credit was

not retroactively reinstated for 2012 until January 2013 As

result our effective tax rate for 2012 was negatively impacted

by 1.6 percentage points The retroactive benefit attributable

to the 2012 tax year is recognized in the period the new legisla

tion was enacted our first quarter of 2013

Special charges favorably impacted our 2012 effective tax rate

by 2.6 percentage points Additionally we resolved certain prior

year tax positions with the IRS and recognized $46 million

settlement reserve to income tax expense negatively impacting

our 2012 effective tax rate by 4.6 percentage points During

2011 special charges deductible IPRD charges and

accounts receivable allowance charges favorably impacted the

2011 effective tax rate by 2.5 percentage points Non

deductible IPRD charges and legal settlement special charges

unfavorably impacted the 2010 effective tax rate by 0.4 per

centage points Refer to Purchased in-process research and

development charges and Special charges sections for further

details regarding these charges

As discussed previously in the Other income expense net

section the Puerto Rico excise tax which is levied on most

purchases from Puerto Rico became effective beginning in

2011 Because the excise tax is not levied on income U.S

generally accepted accounting principles do not allow for the

excise tax to be recognized as part of income tax expense

However any resulting foreign tax credit or income tax deduc

tion is recognized as benefit to income tax expense thus

favorably impacting our effective income tax rate As result

our effective tax rate was favorably impacted by 1.8 and 1.7

percentage points during fiscal years 2012 and 2011 respec

tively compared to 2010
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2011 2010

$826 $907

2012 vs 2Ollvs

2011% 2010%

Change Change

9.0% 8.9%

$2.75 5.2% 8.4%

Net earnings

Diluted net earnings

per share $2.39 $2.52

Our 2012 net earnings of $752 million and diluted net earnings

per share of $2.39 decreased by 9% and 5% respectively

compared to 2011 net earnings of $826 million and diluted net

earnings per share of $2.52 Our 2012 net earnings were nega

tively impacted by after-tax special charges of $275 million and

additional income tax expense of $46 million for combined

impact of $321 million or $1.02 per diluted share The special

charges related to our 2012 realignment plan announced in

August 2012 ongoing restructuring charges related to the

2011 restructuring plan IESD litigation and field action costs

license dispute settlement charge and intangible asset impair

ment charges and inventory write-offs The additional income

tax expense related to settlement reserve for certain prior

year tax positions The impact of the after-tax charges to diluted

net earnings per share were partially offset by share repur

chases resulting in lower outstanding shares during 2012

compared to 2011

Net earnings were $826 million in 2011 9% decrease over

2010 net earnings of $907 million Diluted net earnings per

share were $2.52 in 2011 an 8% decrease over 2010 diluted

net earnings per share of $2.75 Our 2011 net earnings were

negatively impacted by after-tax special charges of $151 mil

lion and after-tax accounts receivable allowance charges of

$47 million for combined impact of $198 million or $0.61

per diluted share The impact of the after-tax charges to diluted

net earnings per share were partially offset by share repur

chases resulting in lower outstanding shares during 2011

compared to 2010 During 2010 our net earnings were

impacted by after-tax charges of $50 million or $0.15 per

diluted share related to special charges IPRD charges and

investment impairment charges

LIQi ITY

We believe that our existing cash balances future cash gener

ated from operations and available borrowing capacity under

our $1.5 billion long-term committed credit facility Credit

Facility and related commercial paper program will be suffi

cient to fund our operating needs working capital requirements

RD opportunities capital expenditures debt service require

ments and shareholder dividends see Dividends section over

the next 12 months and in the foreseeable future thereafter

We believe that our earnings cash flows and balance sheet

position will permit us to obtain additional debt financing or

equity capital should suitable investment and growth opportuni

ties arise Our credit ratings are investment grade We monitor

capital markets regularly and may raise additional capital when

market conditions or interest rate environments are favorable

At December 29 2012 substantially all of our cash and cash

equivalents were held by our non-U.S subsidiaries portion

of these foreign cash balances are associated with earnings

that are permanently reinvested and which we plan to use to

support our continued growth plans outside the United States

through funding of operating expenses capital expenditures

and other investment and growth opportunities The majority of

these funds are only available for use by our U.S operations if

they are repatriated into the United States The funds repatri

ated would be subject to additional U.S taxes upon repatria

tion however it is not practical to estimate the amount of

additional U.S tax liabilities we would incur We currently have

no plans to repatriate funds held by our non-U.S subsidiaries

We use two primary measures that focus on accounts receiv

able and inventory days sales outstanding DSO and days

inventory on hand DIOH We use DSO as measure that

places emphasis on how quickly we collect our accounts

receivable balances from customers We use DIOH which can

also be expressed as measure of the estimated number of

days of cost of sales on hand as measure that places

emphasis on how efficiently we are managing our inventory lev

els These measures may not be computed the same as simi

larly titled measures used by other companies Our DSO

ending net accounts receivable divided by average daily sales

for the most recently completed quarter increased from 88

days at December 31 2011 to 89 days at December 29 2012

Our DIOH ending net inventory divided by average daily cost

of sales for the most recently completed six months increased

from 147 days at December 31 2011 to 150 days at

December 29 2012 Special charges recognized in cost of

sales in the second half of 2012 reduced our December 29
2012 DIOH by days Special charges recognized in cost of

sales in the last half of 2011 reduced our December 31 2011

DIOH by days

NET EARNINGS

in millions except

per share amounts 2012

752
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summary of our cash flows from operating investing and

financing activities is provided in the following table in millions

2012 2011 2010

Net cash provided by used in

Operating activities $1335 $1287 1274

Investing activities 313 337 1081

Financing activities 813 456 86

Effect of currency exchange rate

changes on cash and

cash equivalents

Net increase in cash

and cash equivalents 208 486 107

OPERATING CASH FLOWS

Cash provided by operating activities was $1335 million for

2012 compared to $1287 million for 2011 and $1274 million

for 2010 Operating cash flows can fluctuate significantly from

period to period due to payment timing differences of working

capital accounts such as accounts receivable accounts pay

able accrued liabilities and income taxes payable

INVESTING CASH FLOWS

Cash used in investing activities was $313 million in 2012

compared to $337 million in 2011 and $1081 million in 2010

Our purchases of property plant and equipment which totaled

$280 million $307 million and $305 million in 2012 2011 and

2010 respectively reflect our continued investment in our

product growth platforms currently in place During 2010 we

acquired LightLab Imaging for $93 million in net cash consid

eration and AGA Medical for $549 million in net cash consider

ation and 13.6 million shares of St Jude Medical common

stock We also made an equity minority investment of $60 mil

lion in CardioMEMS

FINANCING CASH FLOWS

Cash used in financing activities was $813 million in 2012

compared to $456 million in 2011 and $86 million in 2010

Our financing cash flows can fluctuate significantly depending

upon our liquidity needs and the amount of stock option exer

cises and the extent of our common stock repurchases

Proceeds from the exercise of stock options and stock issued

provided cash inflows of $119 million $302 million and $152

million during fiscal years 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

During 2012 we paid $992 million for repurchases of our com

mon stock which was financed by cash generated from opera

tions and net commercial paper issuances of $321 million We

also paid $284 million of cash dividends to shareholders

During 2011 we paid $809 million for repurchases of our com

mon stock which was financed by cash generated

from operations and net commercial paper issuances of $247

million We also paid $205 million of cash dividends to share

holders During 2010 we received gross proceeds of $940 mil

lion principal amount of senior notes in the United States and

20.9 billion Yen senior notes in Japan We used the proceeds

to repay our 1.02% Yen-denominated notes due in May 2010

1.02% Yen Notes totaling 20.9 billion Yen and retire 3-year

unsecured term loan totaling $432 million Additionally we

paid $591 million for repurchases of our common stock which

was financed with the senior notes issuance and cash gener

ated from operations

DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES

Total debt increased to $3080 million at December 29 2012

from $2796 million at December 31 2011 primarily as

result of net commercial paper issuances of $321 million the

proceeds of which were used to repurchase our common

stock Our weighted average interest rate on outstanding long-

term debt inclusive of interest rate swaps was 2.2% at

December 29 2012 and 2.3% at December 31 2011

We have long-term $1.5 billion committed Credit Facility used

to support our commercial paper program and for general cor

porate purposes The Credit Facility expires in February 2015

Borrowings under this facility bear interest initially at LIBOR plus

0.875% subject to adjustment in the event of change in our

credit ratings Commitment fees under this Credit Facility are

not material There were no outstanding borrowings under the

Credit Facility as of December 29 2012 or December 31 2011

Our commercial paper program provides for the issuance of

short-term unsecured commercial paper with maturities up to

270 days At December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 we

had an outstanding commercial paper balance of $593 million

and $272 million respectively During 2012 and 2011 our

weighted average effective interest rate on our outstanding

commercial paper borrowings was 0.23% and 0.25% respec

tively Any future commercial paper borrowings would bear

interest at the applicable then-current market rates Our pre

dominant historical practice has been to issue commercial

paper up to the amount backed by our available borrowing

capacity under the Credit Facility as our commercial paper

has historically been issued at lower interest rates

In March 2010 we issued $450 million principal amount of

3-year 2.20% senior notes 2013 Senior Notes and used the

proceeds to retire outstanding debt obligations Interest pay

ments on the 2013 Senior Notes are required on semi-annual

basis We may redeem the 2013 Senior Notes at any time at
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the applicable redemption price The 2013 Senior Notes are

senior unsecured obligations and rank equally with all of our

existing and future senior unsecured indebtedness

Concurrent with the issuance of the 2013 Senior Notes we

entered into 3-year $450 million notional amount interest

rate swap designated as fair value hedge of the changes in

fair value of our fixed-rate 2013 Senior Notes On November

2010 we terminated the interest rate swap and received

cash payment of $19 million The gain from terminating the

interest rate swap agreement has been reflected as an increase

to the carrying value of the debt and is being amortized as

reduction of interest expense over the remaining life of the

2013 Senior Notes Refer to Note 13 of the Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information regarding the

interest rate swap

In July 2009 we issued $700 million aggregate principal

amount of 5-year 3.75% Senior Notes 2014 Senior Notes

and $500 million aggregate principal amount of 10-year

4.875% Senior Notes 2019 Senior Notes We used $500 mil

lion of the net proceeds from these issuances to retire out

standing borrowings We may redeem the 2014 Senior Notes or

2019 Senior Notes at any time at the applicable redemption

prices Both the 2014 Senior Notes and 2019 Senior Notes are

senior unsecured obligations and rank equally with all of our

existing and future senior unsecured indebtedness

In December 2010 we issued our $500 million principal

amount 5-year 2.50% unsecured senior notes 2016 Senior

Notes The majority of the net proceeds from the issuance of

the 2016 Senior Notes was used for general corporate pur

poses including the repurchase of our common stock Interest

payments are required on semi-annual basis We may

redeem the 2016 Senior Notes at any time at the applicable

redemption price The 2016 Senior Notes are senior unsecured

obligations and rank equally with all of our existing and future

senior unsecured indebtedness

Concurrent with the issuance of the 2016 Senior Notes we

entered into 5-year $500 million notional amount interest

rate swap designated as fair value hedge of the changes in

fair value of our fixed-rate 2016 Senior Notes On June

2012 we terminated the interest rate swap and received cash

payment of $24 million The gain from terminating the interest

rate swap agreement is reflected as an increase to the carrying

value of the debt and is being amortized as reduction of inter

est expense over the remaining life of the 2016 Senior Notes

Refer to Note 13 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for

additional information regarding the interest rate swap

In April 2010 we issued 10-year 2.04% unsecured senior

notes in Japan 2.04% Yen Notes totaling 12.8 billion

Japanese Yen the equivalent of $149 million at December 29

2012 and 7-year 1.58% unsecured senior notes in Japan

1.58% Yen Notes totaling 8.1 billion Japanese Yen the equiv

alent of $95 million at December 29 2012 We used the pro

ceeds from these issuances to retire outstanding debt

obligations Interest payments on the 2.04% Yen Notes and

1.58% Yen Notes are required on semi-annual basis and the

principal amounts recorded on the balance sheet fluctuate

based on the effects of foreign currency translation

In March 2011 we borrowed 6.5 billion Japanese Yen under

uncommitted credit facilities with two commercial Japanese

banks that provide for borrowings up to maximum of 11.25

billion Japanese Yen The outstanding 6.5 billion Japanese Yen

balance was the equivalent of $76 million at December 29

2012 The principal amount reflected on the balance sheet

fluctuates based on the effects of foreign currency translation

Half of the borrowings bear interest at the Yen LIBOR plus

0.25% and mature in March 2013 and the other half of the

borrowings bear interest at the Yen LIBOR pIus 0.275% and

mature in June 2013 The maturity dates of each credit facility

automatically extend for one-year period unless we elect to

terminate the credit facility

Our Credit Facility and Yen Notes contain certain operating and

financial covenants Specifically the Credit Facility requires that

we have leverage ratio defined as the ratio of total debt to

EBITDA net earnings before interest income taxes depreciation

and amortization not exceeding 3.0 to 1.0 The Yen Notes

require that we have ratio of total debt to total capitalization not

exceeding 60% and ratio of consolidated EBIT net earnings

before interest and income taxes to consolidated interest

expense of at least 3.0 to 1.0 Under the Credit Facility our senior

notes and Yen Notes we also have certain limitations on how we

conduct our business including limitations on additional liens or

indebtedness and limitations on certain acquisitions mergers

investments and dispositions of assets We were in compliance

with all of our debt covenants as of December 29 2012

SHARE REPURCHASES

On November 29 2012 our Board of Directors authorized

share repurchase program of up to $1.0 billion of our outstand

ing common stock We began repurchasing shares on

December 2012 and completed the repurchases under the

program on February 2013 repurchasing 26.8 million

shares for $1.0 billion at an average repurchase price of

$37.27 per share From December 2012 through December

29 2012 we repurchased 12.9 million shares for $458 million

at an average repurchase price of $35.60 per share

On October 17 2012 our Board of Directors authorized

share repurchase program of up to $300 million of our out

standing common stock We began repurchasing shares on
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October 19 2012 and completed the repurchases under the

program on November 2012 repurchasing 7.7 million

shares for $300 million at an average repurchase price of

$38.97 per share

On December 12 2011 our Board of Directors authorized

share repurchase program of up to $300 million of our out

standing common stock We began repurchasing shares on

January 27 2012 and completed the repurchases under the

program on February 2012 repurchasing 7.1 million

shares for $300 million at an average repurchase price of

$42.14 per share

On August 2011 our Board of Directors authorized share

repurchase program of up to $500 million of our outstanding

common stock We completed the repurchases under the

program on August 29 2011 repurchasing 11.7 million shares

for $500 million at an average repurchase price of $42.79

per share

On October 15 2010 our Board of Directors authorized

share repurchase program of up to $600 million of our out

standing common stock On October 21 2010 our Board of

Directors authorized an additional $300 million of share repur

chases as part of this share repurchase program We com

pleted the repurchases under the program on January 20

2011 repurchasing total of 22.0 million shares for $900 mil

lion at an average repurchase price of $40.87 per share From

January through January 20 2011 we repurchased 6.6 mil

lion shares for $275 million at an average repurchase price of

$41.44 per share

DIVIDENDS

During 2012 our Board of Directors authorized four quarterly

cash dividend payments.The following table provides dividend

authorization shareholder record and dividend payable dates

as well as the cash dividends declared per share On February

23 2013 our Board of Directors authorized cash dividend of

$0.25 per share payable on April 30 2013 to shareholders of

record as of March 29 2013 We expect to continue to pay

quarterly cash dividends in the foreseeable future subject to

Board approval

Cash

Board of Directors Dividends

Dividend Authorization Shareholders Dividend Declared

Date Record Date Payable Date Per Share

February 24 2012 March 30 2012 April 30 2012 $0.23

May 2012 June 29 2012 July 31 2012 0.23

August 2012 September 28 2012 October 31 2012 0.23

December 11 2012 December 31 2012 January 31 2013 0.23

Total dividends declared
per

share during 2012 $0.92

During 2011 our Board of Directors authorized four quarterly

cash dividend payments The following table provides dividend

authorization shareholder record and dividend payable dates

during 2011 as well as the cash dividends declared per share

Prior to 2011 we had not declared or paid any cash dividends

since 1994

Cash

Board of Directors Dividends

Dividend Authorization Shareholders Dividend Declared

Date Record Date Payable Date Per Share

February 26 2011 March 31 2011
April 29 2011 $0.21

Mayll2011 June3O2D11 Ju1y292011 0.21

August 2011 September 30 2011 October 31 2011 0.21

December 13 2011 December 30 2011 January 31 2012 0.21

Total dividends declared per share during 2011 $0.84

oFFBALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

We believe that our off-balance sheet arrangements do not

have material current or anticipated future effect on our con

solidated earnings financial position or cash flows Our off-bal

ance sheet arrangements principally consist of operating leases

for various facilities and equipment purchase commitments

and contingent acquisition commitments

In the normal course of business we periodically enter into

agreements that require us to indemnify customers or suppliers

for specific risks such as claims for injury or property damage

arising out of our products or the negligence of our personnel

or claims alleging that our products infringe third-party patents

or other intellectual property In addition under our bylaws and

indemnification agreements we have entered into with our

executive officers and directors we may be required to indem

nify our executive officers and directors for losses arising from

their conduct in an official capacity on behalf of St Jude

Medical We may also be required to indemnify officers and

directors of certain companies that we have acquired for losses

arising from their conduct on behalf of their companies prior to

the closing of our acquisition Our maximum exposure under

these indemnification obligations cannot be estimated and we

have not accrued any liabilities within our consolidated finan

cial statements or included any indemnification provisions in

our commitments table Historically we have not experienced

significant losses on these types of indemnification obligations

In addition to the amounts shown in the following table our

noncurrent liability for unrecognized tax benefits was $314 mil

lion as of December 29 2012 and we are uncertain as to if or

when such amounts may be settled Related to these unrecog

nized tax benefits our liability for potential penalties and inter

est was $69 million as of December 29 2012
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

summary of contractual obligations and other minimum commercial commitments as of December 29 2012 is as follows in millions

Payments Due by Period

Total

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than

Year Years Years Years

Contractual obligations related

to off-balance sheet arrangements

Operating leases 125 37 49 3Q

Purchase commitments 431 377 47

Contingent consideration payments 78 51 26

Total 634 465 122 36 11

Contractual obligations reflected in the balance sheet

Debt obligationsu 3343 591 1390 655 707

Total $3977 $1056 $1512 $691 $718

These amounts include commitments for inventory purchases and capital expenditures that do not exceed our projected requirements and are in the normal course of business

The purchase commitment amounts do not represent the entire anticipated purchases and capital expenditures in the future but Only those for which we are contractually obligated

These amounts include contingent commitments to acquire various businesses involved in the distribution of our products and other contingent acquisition consideration

payments In connection with certain acquisitions we may agree to provide additional consideration payments upon the achievement of certain product development milestones

which may include but are not limited to successful levels of achievement in clinical trials and certain product regulatory approvals We may also provide for additional

consideration payments to be made upon the achievement of certain levels of future product sales While it is not certain if and/or when these payments will be made we have

included the payments in the table based on our best estimates of the dates when we expect the milestones and/or contingencies will be met

Includes current debt obligations scheduled maturities of long-term debt and scheduled interest payments inclusive of interest rate swap payments See Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on our debt obligations

MARKET RISK

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE RISK

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations

due to transactions denominated primarily in Euros Japanese

Yen Canadian Dollars Australian Dollars Brazilian Reals

British Pounds and Swedish Kronor When the U.S Dollar

weakens against foreign currencies the dollar value of sales

denominated in foreign currencies increases When the U.S

Dollar strengthens against foreign currencies the dollar value of

sales denominated in foreign currencies decreases hypothet

ical 10% change in the value of the U.S Dollar in relation to

our foreign currency denominated sales would have an impact

of approximately $273 million on our 2012 net sales This

amount is not indicative of the hypothetical net earnings impact

due to partially offsetting impacts on the related cost of sales

and operating expenses in the applicable foreign currencies

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK

During 2012 2011 and 2010 we hedged portion of our for

eign currency transaction risk through the use of forward

exchange contracts We use forward exchange contracts to

manage foreign currency exposures related to intercompany

receivables and payables arising from intercompany purchases

of manufactured products These forward contracts are not

designated as qualifying hedging relationships under ASC Topic

815 Derivatives and HedgingASC Topic 815 We measure

our foreign currency exchange rate contracts at fair value on

recurring basis The fair value of all outstanding contracts was

immaterial at December 29 2012 and December 31 2011

During 2012 and 2011 we recognized net gain of $7 million

and net loss of $3 million respectively to other income

expense for our forward currency exchange contracts not

designated as hedging instruments under ASC Topic 815 The

net loss recognized in 2010 was immaterial The net gains and

losses were almost entirely offset by corresponding net losses

and gains on the foreign currency exposures being managed

We do not enter into contracts for trading or speculative pur

poses Our policy is to enter into hedging contracts with major

financial institutions that have at least an or equivalent

credit rating Although we are exposed to credit loss in the

event of nonperformance by counterparties on our outstanding

derivative contracts we do not anticipate nonperformance by

any of the counterparties We continue to evaluate our foreign

currency exchange rate risk and the different mechanisms for

use in managing such risk including using derivative financial

instruments and operational hedges such as international

manufacturing operations Our derivative financial instruments

accounting policy is discussed in detail in Note ito the

Consolidated Financial Statements Although we have not

entered into any derivative hedging contracts to hedge the net

asset exposure of our foreign subsidiaries we have elected to

use natural hedging strategies in certain geographies We have

naturally hedged portion of our Yen-denominated net asset

exposure by issuing long-term Yen-denominated debt

FAIR VALUE RISK

We are also exposed to fair value risk on our Senior Notes and

Yen Notes As of December 29 2012 the aggregate fair value

of our Senior Notes measured using quoted prices in active

markets was $2521 million compared to the aggregate carry

ing value of $2412 million inclusive of the terminated interest
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rate swaps Our 2014 Senior Notes have fixed interest rate of

3.75% our 2019 Senior Notes have fixed rate of interest of

4.875% our 2016 Senior Notes have fixed rate of interest of

2.50% and our 2013 Senior Notes have fixed rate of interest

of 2.20% hypothetical one-percentage point change in the

interest rates would have an aggregate impact of approximately

$60 million on the fair value of our Senior Notes As of

December 29 2012 the fair value of our yen-denominated

notes 2.04% Yen Notes and 1.58% Yen Notes both of which

have fixed interest rate approximated their carrying value

hypothetical one-percentage point change in the interest rates

would have an aggregate impact of approximately $14 million

on the fair value of the yen-denominated notes

Our variable-rate debt consists of our commercial paper bor

rowings in the United States and our yen-denominated credit

facilities in Japan Assuming average outstanding borrowings of

$371 million during 2012 hypothetical one-percentage point

change in the interest rates would have an impact of approxi

mately $4 million on our 2012 interest expense

We are also exposed to equity market risk on our marketable

equity security investments We hold certain marketable equity

securities of publically-traded companies Our investments in

these companies had fair value of $41 million at December

29 2012 which are subject to the underlying price risk of the

public equity markets

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentra

tions of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equiva

lents derivative financial instruments and accounts receivable

We invest our excess cash in bank deposits commercial paper

or money market funds and diversify the concentration of cash

among different financial institutions Counterparties to our

derivative financial instruments are limited to major financial

institutions We perform periodic evaluations of the relative

credit standings of these financial institutions and limit the

amount of credit exposure with any one financial institution

While we do not require collateral or other security to be fur

nished by the counterparties to our derivative financial instru

ments we minimize exposure to credit risk by dealing with

diversified group of major financial institutions and actively

monitoring outstanding positions

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade accounts

receivable are generally limited due to our large number of cus

tomers and their diversity across many geographic areas por

tion of our trade accounts receivable outside the United States

however include sales to government-owned or supported

healthcare systems in several countries which are subject to

payment delays Payment is dependent upon the financial stabil

ity and creditworthiness of those countries national economies

Deteriorating credit and economic conditions in parts of

Southern Europe particularly in Italy Spain Portugal and

Greece may continue to increase the average length of time it

takes us to collect our accounts receivable or also increase our

risk of fully collecting our accounts receivable in these countries

We continually evaluate all government receivables for potential

collection risks associated with the availability of government

funding reimbursement practices and economic conditions

During 2011 we recognized $66 million of accounts receivable

reserves for increased collection risk associated with certain

customer accounts receivable in Europe If the financial condi

tion of customers or the countries healthcare systems continue

to deteriorate such that their
ability

to make payments is uncer

tain additional allowances may be required in future periods

Our aggregate accounts receivable balance net of the allow

ance for doubtful accounts as of December 29 2012 and

December 31 2011 in Italy Spain Portugal and Greece was

approximately $344 million and $322 million respectively

which made up 26% and 24% respectively of our consoli

dated net accounts receivable balance No significant accounts

receivable allowance charges were recognized in 2012

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

In this discussion and in other written or oral statements made

from time to time we have included and may include state

ments that constitute forward-looking statements with respect

to the financial condition results of operations plans objectives

new products future performance and business of St Jude

Medical Inc and its subsidiaries Statements preceded by fol

lowed by or that include words such as may will expect

anticipate continue estimate forecast project

believe or similar expressions are intended to identify some of

the forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and are included along

with this statement for purposes of complying with the safe har

bor provisions of that Act These forward-looking statements

involve risks and uncertainties By identifying these statements

for you in this manner we are alerting you to the possibility that

actual results may differ possibly materially from the results

indicated by these forward-looking statements We undertake no

obligation to update any forward-looking statements Actual

results may differ materially from those contemplated by the for

ward-looking statements due to among others the risks and

uncertainties discussed in the previous section entitled Off

Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations

Market Risk and Competition and Other Considerations and in

Part Item 1A Risk Factors of our Annual Report on Form 10-K

as well as the various factors described below Since it is not

possible to foresee all such factors you should not consider

these factors to be complete list of all risks or uncertainties
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We believe the most significant factors that could affect our

future operations and results are set forth in the following list

Any legislative or administrative reform to the U.S

Medicare or Medicaid systems or international reimburse

ment systems that significantly reduces reimbursement for

procedures using our medical devices or denies coverage

for such procedures as well as adverse decisions relating

to our products by administrators of such systems on cov

erage or reimbursement issues

Assertion acquisition or grant of key patents by or to others

that have the effect of excluding us from market segments

or requiring us to pay royalties

Economic factors including inflation contraction in capital

markets changes in interest rates and changes in foreign

currency exchange rates

Product introductions by competitors that have advanced

technology better features or lower pricing

The loss of or price increases by suppliers of key compo

nents some of which are sole-sourced

reduction in the number of procedures using our devices

caused by cost-containment pressures publication of

adverse study results initiation of investigations of our

customers related to our devices or the development of or

preferences for alternative therapies

Safety performance or efficacy concerns about our prod

ucts many of which are expected to be implanted for many

years some of which may lead to recalls and/or advisories

with the attendant expenses and declining sales

Declining industry-wide sales caused by product quality

issues or recalls or advisories by us or our competitors that

result in loss of physician and/or patient confidence in the

safety performance or efficacy of sophisticated medical

devices in general and/or the types of medical devices

recalled in particular

Changes in laws regulations or administrative practices

affecting government regulation of our products such as

FDA regulations including those that decrease the proba

bility or increase the time and/or expense of obtaining

approval for products or impose additional burdens on the

manufacture and sale of medical devices

10 Regulatory actions arising from concern over Bovine

Spongiform Encephalopathy sometimes referred to as

mad cow disease that have the effect of limiting our abil

ity to market products using bovine collagen such as

Angio-SeaI or products using bovine pericardial material

such as our Biocor Epicr and Trifecta tissue heart valves

or that impose added costs on the procurement of bovine

collagen or bovine pericardial material

11 Our ability to fund future product liability losses related to

claims made subsequent to becoming self-insured

12 Severe weather or other natural disasters that can

adversely impact customers purchasing patterns and/or

patient implant procedures or cause damage to the facili

ties of our critical suppliers or one or more of our facilities

such as an earthquake affecting our facilities in California

or hurricane affecting our facilities in Puerto Rico

13 Healthcare industry changes leading to demands for price

concessions and/or limitations on or the elimination of our

ability to sell in significant market segments

14 Adverse developments in investigations and governmental

proceedings

15 Adverse developments in litigation including product liabil

ity litigation patent or other intellectual property litigation

qui tam litigation or shareholder litigation

16 Inability to successfully integrate the businesses that we

have acquired in recent years and that we plan to acquire

17 Failure to successfully complete or unfavorable data from

clinical trials for our products or new indications for our

products and/or failure to successfully develop markets for

such new indications

18 Changes in accounting rules or tax laws that adversely affect

our results of operations financial position or cash flows

19 The disruptions in the financial markets and the economic

downturn that adversely impact the availability and cost of

credit and customer purchasing and payment patterns

including the collectability of customer accounts receivable

20 Conditions imposed in resolving or any inability to timely

resolve any regulatory issues raised by the FDA including

Form 483 observations or warning letters as well as risks

generally associated with our regulatory compliance and

quality systems

21 Governmental legislation including the Patient Protection

and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education

Reconciliation Act and/or regulation that significantly impacts

the healthcare system in the United States or in international

markets and that results in lower reimbursement for proce

dures using our products reduces medical procedure vol

umes or otherwise adversely affects our business and results

of operations including the U.S medical device excise tax

22 Our inability to realize the expected benefits from our restruc

turing initiatives and continuous improvement efforts and the

negative unintended consequences such activity could have

23 Our inability to maintain protect and enhance our existing

information technology systems and to develop new systems
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We are responsible for the preparation integrity and objectivity

of the accompanying financial statements The financial state

ments were prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States and include amounts

which reflect managements best estimates based on its

informed judgment and consideration given to materiality We

are also responsible for the accuracy of the related data in the

annual report and its consistency with the financial statements

AUDIT COMMITTEE OVERSIGHT

The adequacy of our internal accounting controls the account

ing principles employed in our financial reporting and the

scope of independent and internal audits are reviewed by the

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors consisting solely of

independent directors The independent registered public

accounting firm meets with and has confidential access to the

Audit Committee to discuss the results of its audit work

MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining

adequate internal control over financial reporting as such term

is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f Under the supervi

sion and with the participation of the Companys management

including the CEO and the CEO we conducted an evaluation of

the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting

based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this eval

uation the CEO and CEO concluded that our internal control

over financial reporting was effective as of December 29 2012

Ernst Young LLP our independent registered public account

ing firm has also audited the effectiveness of the Companys

internal control over financial reporting as of December 29
2012 as stated in its report which is included herein

Daniel Starks

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

k1
Donald Zurbay

Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
SHAREHOLDERS OF ST JUDE MEDICAL INC

We have audited St Jude Medical Inc.s internal control over

financial reporting as of December 29 2012 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission the COSO criteria St Jude Medical Inc.s man

agement is responsible for maintaining effective internal control

over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effective

ness of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying titled Managements Report on Internal Control

Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on the Companys internal control over financial report

ing based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective

internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all

material respects Our audit included obtaining an understand

ing of internal control over financial reporting assessing the

risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on

the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that

our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is pro

cess designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reason

able detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reason

able assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts

and expenditures of the company are being made only in

accordance with authorizations of management and directors

of the company and provide reasonable assurance regard

ing prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition

use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over finan

cial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods

are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compli

ance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion St Jude Medical Inc maintained in all mate

rial respects effective internal control over financial reporting

as of December 29 2012 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

the consolidated balance sheets of St Jude Medical Inc as

of December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 and the

related consolidated statements of earnings comprehensive

income shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the

three fiscal years in the period ended December 29 2012 and

our report dated February 26 2013 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon

Minneapolis Minnesota

February 26 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
SHAREHOLDERS OF ST JUDE MEDICAL INC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets of St Jude Medical Inc as of December 29 2012 and

December 31 2011 and the related consolidated statements of

earnings comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended December

29 2012 These financial statements are the responsibility of

the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finan

cial statements are free of material misstatement An audit

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit

also includes assessing the accounting principles used and sig

nificant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our

audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above pres

ent fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial

position of St Jude Medical Inc at December 29 2012 and

December 31 2011 and the consolidated results of its opera

tions and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 29 2012 in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

St Jude Medical Inc.s internal control over financial reporting

as of December 29 2012 based on criteria established in

Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission and our report dated February 26 2013

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

414
/Osfr7LLP

Minneapolis Minnesota

February 26 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS in millions except per share amounts

Fiscal Year Ended December 29 2012 December31 2011 January 12011

Net sales $5503 $5612 $5164

Cost of sales

Cost of sales before special charges 1445 1486 1382

Special charges 93 47 28

Total cost of sales 1538 1533 1410

Gross
profit 3965 4079 3754

Selling general and administrative expense 1891 2084 1818

Research and development expense 676 705 631

Purchased in-process research and development charges 12

Special charges 298 171 17

Operating profit 1100 1115 1276

Other income expense net 95 96 68

Earnings before income taxes 1005 1019 1208

Income tax expense 253 193 301

Net earnings 752 826 907

Net earnings per share

Basic 2.40 2.55 2.76

Diluted 2.39 2.52 2.75

Cash dividends declared per share 0.92 0.84

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 313.3 324.3 328.2

Diluted 314.8 327.1 330.5

See notes to the consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME in millions

Fiscal Year Ended December 29 2012 December 31 2011 January 2011

Net earnings $752 $826 $907

Other comprehensive income loss net of tax

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities net of taxes of

$1 million $2 million and $2 million respectively 10

Reclassification of realized gain on available-for-sale securities

net of taxes of $6 million and $2 million respectively

Foreign currency translation adjustment net of taxes 28 71 13
Other comprehensive income loss 30 68 10
Total comprehensive income $782 $758 $897

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS in millions except par
value and share amounts

December 29 2012 December 31 2011

AS ETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1194 986

Accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful accounts 1349 1367

Inventories 610 624

Deferred income taxes net 220 225

Other current assets 178 182

Total current assets 3551 3384

Property Plant and Equipment

Land building and improvements 602 528

Machinery and equipment 1603 1546

Diagnostic equipment 424 380

Property plant and equipment at cost 2629 2454

Less accumulated depreciation 1204 1066

Net property plant and equipment 1425 1388

Goodwill 2961 2953

Intangible assets net 804 856

Other assets 530 537

Total Assets $9271 $9118

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Current debt obligations 530 83

Accounts payable 254 202

Dividends payable 68 67

Income taxes payable 142

Employee compensation and related benefits 299 305

Other current liabilities 482 403

Total current liabilities 1775 1061

Long-term debt 2550 2713

Deferred income taxes net 323 392

Other liabilities 529 477

Total liabilities 5177 4643

Commitments and Contingencies Note

Shareholders Equity

Preferred stock $1.00 par value 25000000 shares authorized none outstanding

Common stock $0.10 par value 500000000 shares authorized

295648327 and 319615965 shares issued and outstanding at

December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively 30 32

Additional paid-in capital 43

Retained earnings 4018 4384

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Cumulative translation adjustment 26

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 20 18

Total shareholders equity 4094 4475

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 9271 $9118

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQJJITY in millions except share amounts

Common Stock

Number of

Shares

Additional

Accumulated

Other

Paid-In Retained Comprehensive

Capital Earnings Income Loss

Total

Shareholders

EquityAmount

Balance at January 2010 324537581 $33 3192 $94 3325

Comprehensive income

Net earnings 907 907

Other comprehensive loss 10 10
Total comprehensive income 897

Repurchases of common stock 15388500 623 625
Stock-based compensation 70 70

Common stock issued under stock

plans and other net 6293732 151 152

Common stock issued in

connection with an acquisition 13575353 532 533

Tax benefit from stock plans 20 20

Balance at January 2011 329018166 33 156 4099 84 4372

Comprehensive income

Net earnings 826 826

Other comprehensive loss 68 68
Total comprehensive income 758

Cash dividends declared 272 272
Repurchases of common stock 18314774 504 269 775
Stock-based compensation 76 76

Common stock issued under stock

plans and other net 8912573 302 303

Tax benefit from stock plans 13 13

Balance at December 31 2011 319615965 32 43 4384 16 4475

Comprehensive income

Net earnings 752 752

Other comprehensive income 30 30

Total comprehensive income 782

Cash dividends declared 284 284
Repurchases of common stock 27670874 221 834 1058
Stock-based compensation 69 69

Common stock issued under stock

plans and other net 3703236 118 119

Tax shortfall from stock plans

Balance at December 29 2012 295648327 $30 $4018 $46 4094

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS in millions

Fiscal Year Ended

Operating Activities

Net earnings

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash

from operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of debt discount premium net

Inventory step-up amortization

Stock-based compensation

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation

Investment impairment charges

Gain on sale of investments

Purchased in-process research and development charges

Deferred income taxes

Other net

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

net of business acquisitions

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Other current assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Income taxes payable

244

70

17

12

34
17

December 29 2012 December 31 2011 January 2011

$752 $826 907

284 296

11
30

69 76

14

77 65
106 78

13 55 123
13 10 42

48 30
29 39 164

168 14 12

Net cash provided by operating activities 1335 1287 1274

Investing Activities

Purchases of property plant and equipment 280 307 305

Business acquisition payments net of cash acquired 679

Proceeds from sale of investments 19

Other investing activities net 52 30 105

Net cash used in investing activities 313 337 1081

Financing Activities

Proceeds from exercise of stock options and stock issued 119 302 152

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 17

Common stock repurchased including related costs 992 809 591

Dividends paid 284 205

lssuances of commercial paper borrowings net 321 247 26

Borrowings under debt facilities
78 940

Payments under debt facilities 78 620

Other financing activities net 22 10

Net cash used in financing activities 813 456 86

Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash

and cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 208 486 107

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 986 500 393

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $1194 986 500

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paid during the year for

Income taxes 177 203 308

Interest 69 68 63

Noncash investing activities

Issuance of stock in connection with acquisition 534

See notes to the consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Company Overview St Jude Medical Inc together with

its subsidiaries St Jude Medical or the Company develops

manufactures and distributes cardiovascular medical devices

for the global cardiac rhythm management cardiovascular

and atrial fibrillation therapy areas and implantable neurostim

ulation devices for the management of chronic pain The

Companys principal products in each therapy area are as fol

lows Cardiac Rhythm Management tachycardia implantable

cardioverter defibrillator systems ICDs and bradycardia pace

maker systems pacemakers Cardiovascular vascular prod

ucts which include vascular closure products pressure

measurement guidewires optical coherence tomography OCT
imaging products vascular plugs and other vascular accesso

ries and structural heart products which include heart valve

replacement and repair products and structural heart defect

devices Atrial Fibrillation electrophysiology EP introducers

and catheters advanced cardiac mapping navigation and

recording systems and ablation systems and Neuromodulation

neurostimulation products which include spinal cord and

deep brain stimulation devices The Company markets and

sells its products primarily through direct sales force The

principal geographic markets for the Companys products are

the United States Europe Japan and Asia Pacific

During the third quarter of 2012 the Company announced the

realignment of its product divisions into two new operating divi

sions the Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies Division

CATD combining its legacy Cardiovascular CV and Atrial

Fibrillation AF product divisions and the Implantable

Electronic Systems Division IESD combining its legacy

Cardiac Rhythm Management CRM and Neuromodulation

NMD product divisions In addition the Company centralized

certain support functions including information technology

human resources legal business development and certain

marketing functions While this divisional realignment was

effective August 30 2012 the Company continued to report

under its legacy operating segment structure for internal man

agement financial forecasting and reporting purposes through

the end of fiscal year 2012 The Company will report under the

new organizational structure effective the beginning of fiscal

year 2013

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial state

ments include the accounts of the Company and its wholly

owned subsidiaries Intercompany transactions and balances

have been eliminated in consolidation

Fiscal Year The Company utilizes 52/53-week fiscal

year ending on the Saturday nearest December 31st Fiscal

year 2012 2011 and 2010 consisted of 52 weeks and

ended on December 29 2012 December 31 2011 and

January 2011 respectively

Reclassifications Certain prior period amounts have been

reclassified to conform to current year presentation

Use of Estimates Preparation of the Companys consolidated

financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States U.S GAAP requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements

and accompanying notes Actual results could differ from those

estimates

Cash Equivalents The Company considers highly liquid invest

ments with an original maturity of three months or less to be

cash equivalents Cash equivalents are stated at cost which

approximates fair value The Companys cash equivalents

include bank certificates of deposit money market funds and

instruments and commercial paper investments The Company

performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of

the financial institutions and issuers of its cash equivalents and

limits the amount of credit exposure with any one issuer

Marketable Securities Marketable securities consist of pub
licly-traded equity securities that are classified as available-for-

sale securities and investments in mutual funds that are

classified as trading securities On the balance sheet available-

for-sale securities and trading securities are classified as other

current assets and other assets respectively

The following table summarizes the components of the balance

of the Companys available-for-sale securities at December 29
2012 and December 31 2011 in millions

December 29 December 31

2012 2011

$9 $9

$39

Adjusted cost

Gross unrealized gains 32

Fair value $41

Available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value based

upon quoted market prices see Note 12 Unrealized gains

and losses net of related incomes taxes are recognized in

accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders

equity Upon the sale of an available-for-sale security the unre

alized gain loss is reclassified out of accumulated other com

prehensive income and reflected as realized gain loss in net

earnings Realized gains losses are computed using the spe

cific identification method and recognized as other income
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expense During 2012 and 2010 the Company sold avail

able-for-sale securities recognizing realized after-tax gains of

$8 million and $3 million respectively The total pre-tax gains

of $14 million and $5 million were recognized as other income

during 2012 and 2010 respectively see Note There were

no realized gains losses from the sale of available-for-sale

securities recorded during fiscal year 2011 Additionally when

the fair value of an available-for-sale security falls below its

original cost and the Company determines that the correspond

ing unrealized loss is other-than-temporary the Company rec

ognizes an impairment loss to net earnings in the period the

determination is made

The Companys investments in mutual funds are reported at

fair market value based upon quoted market prices and are

held in rabbi trust which is not available for general corpo

rate purposes and is subject to creditor claims in the event of

insolvency see Note 12 These investments are specifically

designated as available to the Company solely for the purpose

of paying benefits under the Companys deferred compensation

plan see Note 11

Accounts Receivable The Company grants credit to customers

in the normal course of business but generally does not

require collateral or any other security to support its receiv

ables The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful

accounts for potential credit losses In Greece the Company

had sold its products through distributor through early 2012

In February 2012 an agreement was reached between the

Greek government and the European Union and International

Monetary Fund whereby creditors would swap existing Greek

government bonds for new bonds with significant reduction

in face value longer term and lower interest rates This

agreement among other macroeconomic and factors specific

to the distributor negatively impacted the solvency and liquidity

of the Companys Greek distributor raising significant doubt

regarding the collectability of the Companys outstanding

receivable balance As result the Company recognized $57

million accounts receivable allowance charge in the consoli

dated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December

31 2011 which was subsequently written off during 2012 No

significant accounts receivable allowance charges were recog

nized in 2012 The Companys total allowance for doubtful

accounts was $47 million and $101 million at December 29

2012 and December 31 2011 respectively

Inventories Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mar

ket with cost determined using the first-in first-out method

Inventories consisted of the following in millions

December 29 December 31

2012 2011

Finished goods $416 $438

work in process 50 54

Raw materials 144 132

$610 $624J

Property Plant and Equipment Property plant and equipment

are recorded at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line

method over their estimated useful lives ranging from 15 years

to 39 years for buildings and improvements three to 15 years

for machinery and equipment including capitalized develop

ment costs for internal-use software and three to seven years

for diagnostic equipment Diagnostic equipment primarily con

sists of programmers that are used by physicians and health-

care professionals to program and analyze data from ICDs and

pacemakers Diagnostic equipment also includes other capital

equipment provided by us to customers for use in diagnostic

and surgical procedures The estimated useful lives of this

equipment are based on anticipated usage by physicians and

healthcare professionals and the timing and impact of expected

new technology platforms and rollouts by the Company

Property plant and equipment are depreciated using acceler

ated methods for income tax purposes During 2012 2011 and

2010 depreciation expense was $196 million $203 million

and $178 million respectively

Goodwill Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair

value of identifiable net assets of business acquired Goodwill

for each reporting unit is reviewed for impairment at least

annually As of December 29 2012 the Company had four

reporting units consisting of its four operating segments see

Note 14 The Company assesses goodwill impairment by con

sidering qualitative factors such as macroeconomic conditions

industry and market considerations cost factors financial per

formance entity specific events changes in net assets and

sustained decrease in share price If the qualitative assessment

results in determination that the fair value of reporting unit

is more-//ke/y-than-not I/ke// meaning having likelihood of

more than 50% greater than its carrying amount no additional

testing is considered necessary However if the Company

determines the fair value is more-//ke/y-than-not below the car

rying value of reporting unit the Company performs the two-

step goodwill impairment test required by Accounting

Standards Codification ASC Topic 350 /ritang/bles Goodw/I/

and Other In the first step the Company compares the fair
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value of each reporting unit as computed primarily by present

value cash flow calculations to its book carrying value includ

ing goodwill If the carrying value exceeds the fair value the

goodwill of the reporting unit is potentially impaired and the

Company would complete step in order to measure the

potential impairment loss In step the Company calculates

the implied fair value of goodwill by deducting the fair value of

all tangible and intangible net assets including unrecognized

intangible assets of the reporting unit from the fair value of the

reporting unit as determined in step If the implied fair

value of goodwill is less than the carrying value of goodwill the

Company would recognize an impairment loss equal to the dif

ference During the fourth quarters of 2012 and 2011 the

Company concluded that it was unlikely that the fair value was

less than its carry value based on its qualitative assessment

Additionally during the fourth quarter of 2010 the Company

completed its quantitative goodwill impairment assessment

under previous accounting guidance and determined there was

no evidence of impairment associated with the carrying values

of goodwill for its reporting units

Other Intangible Assets Other intangible assets consist of

purchased technology and patents in-process research and

development IPRD acquired in business acquisition

customer lists and relationships trademarks and tradenames

licenses and distribution agreements Definite-lived intangible

assets are amortized on straight-line basis over the estimated

useful life ranging from three to 20 years Certain trademark

assets are considered indefinite-lived intangible assets and are

not amortized

The Companys policy defines IPRD as the value of technol

ogy acquired for which the related products have not yet

reached technological feasibility and have no future alternative

use The primary basis for determining the technological feasi

bility of these projects is obtaining regulatory approval to mar

ket the underlying products in an applicable geographic region

IPRD acquired in business acquisition is subject to ASC

Topic 805 Business Combinations which requires the fair

value of IPRD to be capitalized as an indefinite-lived intangi

ble asset until completion of the IPRD project or abandon

ment Upon completion of the development project generally

when regulatory approval to market the product is obtained

the IPRD is amortized over its estimated useful life If the

IPRD projects are abandoned the related IPRD assets

would likely be impaired and written down to fair value The

purchase of certain intellectual property assets or the rights to

such intellectual property is considered purchase of assets

rather than the acquisition of business For such purchases

rather than being capitalized any IPRD acquired in such

asset purchases is expensed immediately

The Company also reviews its indefinite-lived intangible assets

for impairment at least annually to determine if any adverse

conditions exist that would indicate impairment or when impair

ment indicators exist The Company assesses its indefinite-lived

intangible assets for impairment similar to goodwill by consider

ing qualitative factors such as macroeconomic conditions

industry and market considerations cost factors financial per

formance entity specific events changes in net assets and

sustained decrease in share price Similar to the goodwill

impairment analysis if the qualitative assessment results in

determination that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible

asset is more-/ike/y-than-not like/V meaning having likeli

hood of more than 50% greater than its carrying amount no

additional testing is considered necessary However if the

Company determines the fair value of its indefinite-lived intan

gible assets is more-//ke/y-than-not below the carrying value

impairment indicators exist The Company then analyzes the

carrying value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset to quanti

tatively determine if the carrying value exceeds the assets

expected undiscounted future cash flows If the carrying value

exceeds the undiscounted future cash flows the asset is writ

ten down to the fair value which the Company determines by

present value cash flow calculation

The Company also reviews its definite-lived intangible assets for

impairment when impairment indicators exist When impair

ment indicators exist the Company determines if the carrying

value of its definite-lived intangible assets exceeds the related

undiscounted future cash flows In cases where the carrying

value exceeds the undiscounted cash flows the carrying value

is written down to fair value which the Company determines

using present value cash flow calculations During 2012 the

Company recognized impairment charges of $31 million asso

ciated with purchased technology assets in the Companys

NMD AF and CV businesses as their future expected undis

counted cash flows did not exceed the carrying value of the

related assets During both 2012 and 2011 the Company rec

ognized $2 million and $52 million respectively of intangible

asset impairments associated with customer relationship intan

gible assets acquired in connection with legacy acquisitions of

businesses involved in the distribution of the Companys prod

ucts Due to the changing dynamics of the U.S healthcare

market specifically as it relates to hospital purchasing prac

tices these intangible assets were determined to have no

future discrete cash flows and were fully impaired in the

respective periods There was no impairment of the Companys

intangible assets during fiscal year 2010 See Note for further

detail regarding the intangible asset impairments recognized

during fiscal years 2012 and 2011
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Product Warranties The Company offers warranty on various

products the most significant of which relate to pacemaker

and lCD systems The Company estimates the costs that may

be incurred under its warranties and records liability in the

amount of such costs at the time the product is sold Factors

that affect the Companys warranty liability include the number

of units sold historical and anticipated rates of warranty claims

and cost per claim The Company periodically assesses the

adequacy of its recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the

amounts as necessary

Changes in the Companys product warranty liability during fis

cal years 2012 and 2011 were as follows in millions

2012 2011

Balance at beginning of period $36 $25

Warranty expense recognized 15

Warranty credits issued

Balance at end of period $38 $36

Product Liability Based on historical loss trends the Company

accrues for product liability
claims through its self-insurance

program in effort to adequately cover future losses Additionally

the Company accrues for product liability claims when it is prob

able that liability has been incurred and the amount of the lia

bility can be reasonably estimated Receivables for insurance

recoveries from prior product liability insurance coverage are

recognized when it is probable that recovery will be realized

The Company has not incurred significant amount of product

liability charges during fiscal years 2012 2011 or 2010

Litigation The Company accrues liability for costs related to

litigation including future legal costs settlements and judg

ments where it has assessed that loss is probable and an

amount can be reasonably estimated

Revenue Recognition The Company sells its products to hos

pitals primarily through direct sales force In certain interna

tional markets the Company sells its products through

independent distributors The Company recognizes revenue

when persuasive evidence of sales arrangement exists deliv

ery of goods occurs through the transfer of title and risks and

rewards of ownership the selling price is fixed or determinable

and collectability is reasonably assured portion of the

Companys inventory is held by field sales representatives or

consigned at hospitals Revenue is recognized at the time the

Company is notified that the inventory has been implanted or

used by the customer For products that are not consigned

revenue recognition occurs upon shipment to the hospital or in

the case of distributors when title transfers under the contract

The Company offers sales rebates and discounts to certain

customers The Company records such rebates and discounts

as reduction of net sales in the same period revenue is recog

nized The Company estimates rebates based on customers

contracted terms and historical sales experience

Research and Development Research and development costs

are expensed as incurred Research and development costs

include product development costs pre-approval regulatory

costs and clinical research expenses

Stock-Based Compensation The Company accounts for stock-

based compensation in accordance with ASC Topic 718

Compensation Stock Compensation ASC Topic 718 Under

the fair value recognition provisions of ASC Topic 718 the

Company measures stock-based compensation cost at the

grant date fair value and recognizes the compensation expense

over the requisite service period which is the vesting period

using straight-line attribution method

The amount of stock-based compensation expense recognized

during period is based on the portion of the awards that are

ultimately expected to vest The Company estimates pre-vesting

award forfeitures at the time of grant by analyzing historical data

and revises those estimates in subsequent periods if actual for

feitures differ from those estimates Ultimately the total expense

recognized over the vesting period will only be for those awards

that vest The Companys awards are not eligible to vest early in

the event of retirement however the majority of the Companys

awards vest early in the event of change in control

Net Earnings Per Share Basic net earnings per share is com

puted by dividing net earnings by the weighted average num
ber of outstanding common shares during the period exclusive

of restricted stock awards Diluted net earnings per share is

computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average

number of outstanding common shares and dilutive securities

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and

diluted net earnings per share for fiscal years 2012 2011 and

2010 in millions except per share amounts

2012 2011 2010

Numerator

Net earnings 752 826 907

Denominator

Basic weighted average

shares outstanding 313.3 324.3 328.2

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options 1.3 2.6 2.3

Restricted stock units 0.2 0.2

Diluted weighted average

shares outstanding 314.8 327.1 330.5

Basic net earnings per share 2.40 2.55 2.76

Diluted net earnings per share 2.39 2.52 2.75
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Approximately 18.9 million 11.5 million and 18.3 million

shares of common stock subject to stock options and restricted

stock units were excluded from the diluted net earnings per

share computation because they were not dilutive during fiscal

years 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Foreign Currency Translation Sales and expenses denomi

nated in foreign currencies are translated at average exchange

rates in effect throughout the year Assets and liabilities of for

eign operations are translated at period-end exchange rates with

the impacts of foreign currency translation recognized to cumu

lative translation adjustment component of accumulated

other comprehensive income loss Foreign currency transac

tion gains and losses are included in other income expense

Derivative Financial Instruments The Company follows the

provisions of ASC Topic 815 Derivatives and Hedging ASC

Topic 815 to account for its derivative instruments and hedg

ing activities ASC Topic 815 requires all derivative financial

instruments to be recognized on the balance sheet at fair

value Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized in

net earnings or other comprehensive income depending on

whether the derivative is designated as part of qualifying

hedge transaction

The Company uses forward contracts to manage foreign cur

rency exposures primarily related to intercompany receivables

and payables arising from intercompany purchases of manu

factured products These forward contracts are not designated

as qualifying hedges and therefore the changes in the fair val

ues of these derivatives are recognized in net earnings and

classified in other income expense The gains and losses on

these forward contracts largely offset the losses or gains on the

foreign currency exposures being managed

The Company has periodically entered into interest rate swap

contracts to hedge the risk of the change in the fair value of

fixed-rate borrowings due to changes in the benchmark interest

rate As designated fair value hedges changes in the value of

the fair value hedge are recognized as an asset or liability as

applicable offsetting the changes in the fair value of the

hedged debt instrument The Company has also periodically

entered into interest rate swap contracts to hedge the risk to net

earnings associated with movements in interest rates by con-

vetting variable-rate borrowings into fixed-rate borrowings As

designated cash flow hedges the fair value of the swap contract

is recognized as an asset or liability as applicable with the

related unrealized gain loss recorded to other comprehensive

income The Companys swap contracts are classified on the

consolidated balance sheets as component of other current

assets other assets other accrued expenses or other liabilities

based on the gain or loss position of the contract and the con

tract maturity date

New Accounting Pronouncements In June 2011 the

Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued

Accounting Standards Update ASU 2011-05 Comprehensive

Income Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 22W
Presentation of Comprehensive Income which eliminates the

option to report other comprehensive income and its compo
nents in the consolidated statements of shareholders equity

ASU 2011-05 as amended requires an entity to present items

of net income and other comprehensive income in one contin

uous statement referred to as the statement of comprehen

sive income or in two separate but consecutive statements

Each component of net income and each component of other

comprehensive income is required to be presented with subto

tals for each and grand total for total comprehensive income

The updated guidance does not change the calculation of earn

ings per share The Company adopted ASU 2011-05 and ASU

2011-12 as amended Presentation of Comprehensive Income

Reclassifications of Items of Other Comprehensive Income in

the first quarter of fiscal year 2012 Refer to the Consolidated

Statements of Comprehensive Income for the new presentation

requiring separate statement which had no impact to the

Companys Consolidated Statements of Earnings Consolidated

Balance Sheets or Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in

any interim or for the year ended December 29 2012

In July 2012 the FASB issued ASU 2012-02 Intangibles

GoodwIll and Other Topic 350 Testing Indefinite-lived

Intangible Assets for Impairment an update to ASU 2011-08

Intangibles Goodwill and Other Topic 35W Testing Goodwill

for Impairment ASU 2012-02 enables an entity to assess quali

tative factors to determine whether it is more-likely-than-not that

an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired as basis for

determining whether it is necessary to perform the quantitative

impairment test in accordance with Subtopic 350-30

Intangibles Goodwill and Other General Intangibles Other

than Goodwill The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as

having likelihood of more than 50 percent Previous guidance

in Subtopic 350-30 required an entity to test an indefinite-lived

intangible asset for impairment by comparing the fair value of

the asset with its carrying amount utilizing only quantitative

impairment test ASU 2012-02 is effective for interim and annual

reporting periods for fiscal years beginning after September 15

2012 with early adoption permitted The Company early

adopted ASU 2012-02 during the fourth quarter of 2012 and

there was no impact to the Companys financial statements
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NOTE
ACOJISITIONS AND MINORITY

INVESTMENT

The Companys most significant acquisitions are described

below The results of operations of businesses acquired have

been included in the Companys consolidated results of opera

tions since the dates of acquisition Pro forma results of opera

tions have not been presented for these acquisitions since the

effects of these business acquisitions were not material to the

Company either individually or in the aggregate

Fiscal Year 2010

LightLab Imaging Inc On July 2010 the Company com

pleted its acquisition of LightLab Imaging Inc LightLab

Imaging for $93 million in net cash consideration The

Company recognized direct transaction costs of $1 million

LightLab Imaging was based in Westford Massachusetts and

developed manufactured and marketed OCT for coronary

imaging applications OCT is high resolution diagnostic coro

nary imaging technology that complements the Fractional Flow

Reserve FFR technology acquired by the Company as part of

the Radi Medical Systems AB Radi Medical Systems acquisi

tion in December 2008

The goodwill recorded as result of the LightLab Imaging

acquisition is deductible for income tax purposes and was

entirely allocated to the Cardiovascular operating segment The

goodwill represents the strategic benefits of growing the

Companys cardiovascular product portfolio and the expected

revenue growth from increased market penetration from future

products and customers In connection with the acquisition of

LightLab Imaging the Company recognized $40 million of

developed and core technology intangible assets that have an

estimated useful life of 15 years and $14 million of IPRD that

was capitalized as an indefinite-lived intangible asset

AGA Medical Inc On November 18 2010 the Company

completed its acquisition of AGA Medical Inc AGA Medical

acquiring all of the outstanding shares of AGA Medical

NASDAQ AGAM for $20.80 per share in cash and stock

transaction valued at $1.1 billion which consisted of $549 mil

lion in net cash consideration and 13.6 million shares of St

Jude Medical common stock The transaction was consum

mated through an exchange offer followed by merger The

Company recognized direct transaction costs of $15 million

and assumed debt of $197 million that was paid off at closing

Acquiring AGA Medical based in Plymouth Minnesota

expanded the Companys cardiovascular product portfolio

and future product pipeline to treat structural heart defects

and vascular abnormalities through minimally invasive trans

catheter treatments

The goodwill recorded as result of the AGA Medical acquisi

tion was not deductible for income tax purposes and was allo

cated entirely to the Companys Cardiovascular operating

segment The goodwill represents the strategic benefits of

growing the Companys cardiovascular product portfolio and

the expected revenue growth from increased market penetra

tion from future products and customers In connection with

the acquisition of AGA Medical the Company capitalized $372

million of developed and core technology intangible assets

$120 million of IPRD and $49 million of trademark intangible

assets The estimated useful lives of the developed and core

technology intangible assets range from 12 to 15 years Both

the IPRD and trademark assets have been recorded as indefi

nite-lived intangible assets During 2011 the Company final

ized the $1.1 billion purchase price allocation and recorded

$3 million decrease to goodwill The impacts of finalizing the

purchase price allocation individually and in the aggregate

were not considered material to reflect as retrospective

adjustment of the historical financial statements

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the

assets acquired and liabilities assumed as result of the signif

icant business acquisitions made by the Company in fiscal year

2010 in millions

LightLab AGA

MedicalImaging Total

Current assets 15 97 112

Deferred income taxes net 13 17

Goodwill 41 881 922

Other intangible assets 40 421 461

Acquired IPRD 14 120 134

Other long-term assets 45 47

Total assets acquired 116 1577 1693

Current liabilities 23 62 85

Deferred income taxes net 196 196

Other long-term liabilities 236 236

Net assets acquired 93 $1083 $1176

Cash paid net of cash acquired 93 549 642

Non-cash SJM shares at fair value 534 534

Net assets acquired 93 $1083 $1176

Minority Investment During 2010 the Company made

minority equity investment of $60 million in CardioMEMS Inc

CardioM EMS privately-held company that is focused on the

development of wireless monitoring technology that can be

placed directly into the pulmonary artery to assess cardiac per

formance via measurement of pulmonary artery pressure The

investment agreement resulted in 19% ownership interest

and provided the Company with the exclusive right but not the

obligation to acquire CardioMEMS for an additional payment of

$375 million during the period that extends through the com

pletion of certain regulatory milestones The equity investment

and allocated value of the fixed price purchase option are

being carried at cost
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NOTE
GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for each of the Companys reportable segments see Note 14 for the fiscal years

ended December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 were as follows in millions

CRM/NMD CV/AF Total

Balance at January 2011 1231 1725 2956

AGA Medical

Foreign currency translation and other

Balance at December31 2011 1235 1718 2953

Foreign currency translation and other 14

Balance at December 29 2012 $1229 $1732 $2961

During 2011 the Company finalized the AGA Medical purchase price and recorded $3 million decrease to goodwill The

impacts of finalizing the purchase price allocation individually and in the aggregate were not considered material to reflect as

retrospective adjustment of the historical financial statements

The following table provides the gross carrying amount of other intangible assets and related accumulated amortization in millions

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Definite-lived intangible assets

Purchased technology and patents 947 $336 922 $276

Customer lists and relationships 57 36 48 25

Trademarks and tradenames 22 10 24

Licenses distribution agreements and other

$1032 $386 $1000 $313

Indefinite-lived intangible assets

Acquired IPRD 109 120

Trademarks and tradenames 49 49

158 169

During 2012 the Company received U.S Food and Drug Administration FDA clearance to market its AMPLATZER Vascular

Plug technology acquired in connection with its AGA Medical acquisition in November 2010 As result the Company reclassi

fied $11 million of IPRD from an indefinite-lived intangible asset to purchased technology definite-lived intangible asset During

2011 the Company received approval in Japan for its OCT technology acquired in conjunction with its LightLab Imaging acquisi

tion in 2010 As result of the approval the Company reclassified $14 million of acquired IPRD from an indefinite-lived intangi

ble asset to purchased technology definite-lived intangible asset

Amortization expense was $88 million $93 million and $66 million during fiscal years 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The fol

lowing table presents expected future amortization expense Actual amounts of amortization expense may differ due to additional

intangible assets acquired and foreign currency translation impacts in millions

After

20172013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Amortization expense $87 $85 $85 $85 $75 $229

December 29 2012 December 31 2011
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NOTE
DEBT

The Companys debt consisted of the following in millions

December 29 December 31

2012 2011

2.20% senior notes due 2013 454 461

3.75% senior notes due 2014 699 699

2.50% senior notes due 2016 518 518

4.875% senior notes due 2019 496 495

1.58% Yen-denominated senior notes due 2017 95 104

2.04% Yen-denominated senior notes due 2020 149 164

Yen-denominated credit facilities 76 83

commercial paper borrowings 593 272

Total debt 3080 2796

Less current debt obligations 530 83

Long-term debt $2550 $2713

Expected future minimum principal payments under the

Companys debt obligations are as follows $526 million in 2013

$700 million in 2014 $593 million in 2015 $500 million in

2016 $95 million in 2017 and $649 million in years thereafter

Senior Notes Due 2013 On March 10 2010 the Company

issued $450 million principal amount of 3-year 2.20% unse

cured senior notes 2013 Senior Notes that mature in

September 2013 The majority of the net proceeds from the

issuance of the 2013 Senior Notes was used to retire outstand

ing debt obligations Interest payments are required on semi

annual basis The 2013 Senior Notes were issued at

discount yielding an effective interest rate of 2.23% at issu

ance The Company may redeem the 2013 Senior Notes at any

time at the applicable redemption price The debt discount is

being amortized as interest expense through maturity

Concurrent with the issuance of the 2013 Senior Notes the

Company entered into 3-year $450 million notional amount

interest rate swap designated as fair value hedge of the

changes in fair value of the Companys fixed-rate 2013 Senior

Notes On November 2010 the Company terminated the

interest rate swap and received cash payment of $19 million

The gain from terminating the interest rate swap agreement

has been reflected as an increase to the carrying value of the

debt and is being amortized as reduction of interest expense

resulting in net average interest rate of 0.8% that will be rec

ognized over the remaining term of the 2013 Senior Notes

Senior Notes Due 2014 On July 28 2009 the Company

issued $700 million principal amount of 5-year 3.75% unse

cured senior notes 2014 Senior Notes that mature in July

2014 Interest payments are required on semi-annual basis

The 2014 Senior Notes were issued at discount yielding an

effective interest rate of 3.78% at issuance The debt discount

is being amortized as interest expense through maturity The

Company may redeem the 2014 Senior Notes at any time at

the applicable redemption price

Senior Notes Due 2016 On December 2010 the Company

issued $500 million principal amount of 5-year 2.50% unse

cured senior notes 2016 Senior Notes that mature in January

2016 The majority of the net proceeds from the issuance of

the 2016 Senior Notes was used for general corporate pur

poses including the repurchase of the Companys common

stock Interest payments are required on semi-annual basis

The 2016 Senior Notes were issued at discount yielding an

effective interest rate of 2.54% at issuance The debt discount

is being amortized as interest expense through maturity The

Company may redeem the 2016 Senior Notes at any time at

the applicable redemption price

Concurrent with the issuance of the 2016 Senior Notes the

Company entered into 5-year $500 million notional amount

interest rate swap designated as fair value hedge of the

changes in fair value of the Companys fixed-rate 2016 Senior

Notes On June 2012 the Company terminated the interest

rate swap and received cash payment of $24 million The

gain from terminating the interest rate swap agreement has

been reflected as an increase to the carrying value of the debt

and is being amortized as reduction of interest expense

resulting in net average interest rate of 1.3% that will be rec

ognized over the remaining term of the 2016 Senior Notes

Senior Notes Due 2019 On July 28 2009 the Company

issued $500 million principal amount of 10-year 4.875% unse

cured senior notes 2019 Senior Notes that mature in July

2019 Interest payments are required on semi-annual basis

The 2019 Senior Notes were issued at discount yielding an

effective interest rate of 5.04% at issuance The debt discount

is being amortized as interest expense through maturity The

Company may redeem the 2019 Senior Notes at any time at

the applicable redemption price

1.58% Yen-Denominated Senior Notes Due 2017 On April

28 2010 the Company issued 7-year 1.58% unsecured

senior notes in Japan 1.58% Yen Notes totaling 8.1 billion

Japanese Yen the equivalent of $95 million at December 29

2012 and $104 million at December 31 2011 The principal

amount of the 1.58% Yen Notes recorded on the balance sheet

fluctuates based on the effects of foreign currency translation

Interest payments are required on semi-annual basis and the

entire principal balance is due on April 28 2017

2.04% Yen-Denominated Senior Notes Due 2020 On April

28 2010 the Company issued 10-year 2.04% unsecured

senior notes in Japan 2.04% Yen Notes totaling 12.8 billion

Japanese Yen the equivalent of $149 million at December 29

2012 and $164 million at December 31 2011 The principal

amount of the 2.04% Yen Notes recorded on the balance sheet
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fluctuates based on the effects of foreign currency translation

Interest payments are required on semi-annual basis and the

entire principal balance is due on April 28 2020

YenDenominated Credit Facilities In March 2011 the

Company borrowed 6.5 billion Japanese Yen the equivalent of

$76 million at December 29 2012 and $83 million at December

31 2011 under uncommitted credit facilities with two commer

cial Japanese banks that provide for borrowings up to maxi

mum of 11.25 billion Japanese Yen The principal amount

reflected on the balance sheet fluctuates based on the effects of

foreign currency translation Half of the borrowings bear interest

at Yen LIBOR plus 0.25% and mature in March 2013 and the

other half of the borrowings bear interest at Yen LIBOR plus

0.275% and mature in June 2013 The maturity dates of each

credit facility automatically extend for one-year period unless

the Company elects to terminate the credit facility

Other Available Borrowings In December 2010 the Company

entered into $1.5 billion unsecured committed credit facility

Credit Facility that it may draw on for general corporate pur

poses and to support its commercial paper program The Credit

Facility expires in February 2015 Borrowings under the Credit

Facility bear interest initially at LIBOR plus 0.875% subject to

adjustment in the event of change in the Companys credit

ratings As of December 29 2012 and December 31 2011

the Company had no outstanding borrowings under the

Credit Facility

The Companys commercial paper program provides for the

issuance of short-term unsecured commercial paper with

maturities up to 270 days As of December 29 2012 and

December 31 2011 the Companys commercial paper borrow

ings were $593 million and $272 million respectively During

2012 the Companys weighted average effective interest rate

on its commercial paper borrowings was approximately 0.23%

Any future commercial paper borrowings would bear interest at

the applicable then-current market rates The Company classi

fies all of its commercial paper borrowings as long-term debt

as the Company has the ability to repay any short-term maturity

with available cash from its existing long-term committed

Credit Facility

NOTE
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LEASES

The Company leases various facilities and equipment under

non-cancelable operating lease arrangements Future mini

mum lease payments under these leases are as follows $37

million in 2013 $28 million in 2014 $21 million in 2015 $16

million in 2016 $14 million in 2017 and $9 million in years

thereafter Rent expense under all operating leases was $44

million $45 million and $36 million in fiscal years 2012 2011

and 2010 respectively

PRODUCT LIABILITY LITIGATION

Silzone Litigation and Insurance Receivables The Company

has been sued in various jurisdictions beginning in March

2000 by some patients who received heart valve product with

Silzone coating which the Company stopped selling in

January 2000 The Company has vigorously defended against

the claims that have been asserted and will continue to do so

with respect to any remaining claims

The Companys outstanding Silzone cases consist of one class

action in Ontario one individual case in Ontario and one pro

posed class action in British Columbia by the provincial health

insurer In Ontario trial on common issues commenced in

February 2010 in class action case involving Silzone patients

In June 2012 the Court ruled in the Companys favor on all

nine common class issues and the Court ruled the case should

be dismissed An order dismissing that action has been signed

by the trial judge On September 14 2012 counsel for the

class filed an appeal with the Court of Appeal for the Province

of Ontario The parties will be exchanging written arguments

between March and September 2013 and the appeal will likely

be heard in November 2013 The proposed class action lawsuit

by the British Columbia provincial health insurer seeks to

recover the cost of insured services furnished or to be furnished

to patients who were also class members in British Columbia

class action that was resolved in 2010 The British Columbia

provincial health insurer recently consented to dismissal of

the action and an order has been signed by the Court dismiss

ing the case The individual case in Ontario requests damages

in excess of $1 million claiming unspecified special damages

health care costs and interest Based on the Companys histor

ical experience the amount ultimately paid if any often does

not bear any relationship to the amount claimed

The Company has recorded an accrual for probable legal costs

settlements and judgments for Silzone related litigation The

Company is not aware of any unasserted claims related to

Sllzone-coated products For all Silzone legal costs incurred

the Company records insurance receivables for the amounts

that it expects to recover based on its assessment of the spe

cific insurance policies the nature of the claim and the

Companys experience with similar claims The Companys cur

rent and final insurance layer for Silzone claims consists of $13

million of remaining coverage with two insurance carriers To

the extent that the Companys future Silzone costs the material

components of which are settlements judgments legal fees

and other related defense costs exceed its remaining insur

ance coverage the Company would be responsible for such
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costs The Company has not recognized an expense related to

any potential future damages as they are not probable or rea

sonably estimable at this time

The following table summarizes the Companys Silzone legal

accrual and related insurance receivable at December 29

2012 and December 31 2011 in millions

Silzone legal accrual $4

Silzone insurance receivable $3

The Company has vigorously defended against the claims that

have been asserted and expects to continue to do so with

respect to any remaining claims The Company has not

recorded an expense related to any potential damages in con

nection with these matters because any potential loss is not

probable or reasonably estimable

PATENT AND OTHER INTELLECTUAL

PROPERTY LITIGATION

Volcano Corporation LightLab Imaging Litigation The

Companys subsidiary LightLab Imaging has pending litigation

with Volcano Corporation Volcano and Axsun Technologies

Inc Axsun subsidiary of Volcano in the Massachusetts

state court and in state court in Delaware LightLab Imaging

makes and sells optical coherence tomography OCT imaging

systems Volcano is LightLab Imaging competitor in medical

imaging Axsun makes and sells lasers and is supplier of

lasers to LightLab Imaging for use in OCT imaging systems

The lawsuits arise out of Volcanos acquisition of Axsun in

December 2008 Before Volcano acquired Axsun LightLab

Imaging and Axsun had worked together to develop tunable

laser for use in OCT imaging systems While the laser was in

development LightLab Imaging and Axsun entered into an

agreement pursuant to which Axsun agreed to sell its tunable

lasers exclusively to LightLab in the field of human coronary

artery imaging for certain period of time

After Volcano acquired Axsun in December 2008 LightLab

Imaging sued Axsun and Volcano in Massachusetts asserting

number of claims arising out of Volcanos acquisition of Axsun

In January 2011 the Court ruled that Axsuns and Volcanos

conduct constituted knowing and willful violations of statute

which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices or acts of

unfair competition entitling LightLab Imaging to double dam

ages and furthermore that LightLab Imaging was entitled to

recover attorneys fees In February 2011 Volcano and Axsun

were ordered to pay the Company for reimbursement of attor

neys fees and double damages which Volcano paid to the

Company in July 2011 The Court also issued certain injunc

tions and declaratory relief In January 2013 the Supreme

December 29 December 31

2012 2011

$22

$15

Judicial Court for Massachusetts granted the Companys

request to bypass the intermediary appellate court and has

accepted the matter for its direct review

In Delaware Axsun and Volcano commenced an action in

February 2010 against LightLab Imaging seeking declaration

as to whether Axsun may supply certain light source for use

in OCT imaging systems to Volcano Axsuns and Volcanos

position is that this light source is not tunable laser and

hence falls outside Axsuns exclusivity obligations to Volcano

LightLab Imagings position asserted both in defense and in

counterclaim is that the light source is tunable laser which

LightLab Imagings contract bars Axsun from supplying

Volcano Though the trial of this matter was expected to occur

in early 2011 in March 2011 ruling the Delaware Court

postponed the trial of this case because Axsun and Volcano did

not yet have finalized light source to present to the Court

In May 2011 LightLab Imaging initiated lawsuit against

Volcano and Axsun in the Delaware state court The suit seeks

to enforce LightLab Imagings exclusive contract with Axsun

and also alleges claims to prevent Volcano from interfering with

that contract and to bar Axsun and Volcano from using

LightLab Imaging confidential information and trade secrets

and to prevent Volcano and Axsun from violating

Massachusetts statute prohibiting unfair methods of competi

tion and unfair or deceptive acts or practices relating to

LightLab Imagings tunable laser technology In October 2011

LightLab Imaging filed an amended and supplemental com

plaint in this action and in early November 2011 the Company

received Volcano and Axsuns response including motion for

judgment on the pleadings and motion to stay the action In

May 2012 the Court granted Volcanos motion to stay the pro

ceedings until Volcano provides notice of its intent to begin

clinical trials or engage in other public activities with an OCT

imaging system that uses type of light source that is in dis

pute in the lawsuit Volcano is under an order to provide such

notice at least 45 days before beginning such trials or engaging

in such activities In January 2013 the Company filed motion

with the court to lift the stay and allow the matter to proceed

given certain statements and activities made by Volcano

Volcano Corporation St Jude Medical Patent Litigation In

July 2010 the Company filed lawsuit in federal district court

in Delaware against Volcano for patent infringement In the

suit the Company asserted certain patents against Volcano and

seeks injunctive relief and monetary damages The infringed

patents are part of the St Jude Medical PressureWire technol

ogy platform which was acquired as part of St Jude Medicals

purchase of Radi Medical Systems in December 2008 Volcano

filed counterclaims against the Company in this case alleging

certain St Jude Medical patent claims are unenforceable and

that certain St Jude Medical products infringe certain Volcano
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patents The Company believes the assertions and claims

made by Volcano are without merit Jury trials on liability issues

in this matter occurred in October 2012 On October 19 2012

the jury ruled in favor of Volcano finding that certain Volcano

patents do not infringe the Companys patents and that certain

St Jude Medical patents were invalid Before the trial involving

the patents Volcano asserted against the Company Volcano

advised the Company it would not proceed on one patent and

as part of this decision Volcano agreed not to assert patent

infringement claim against the Company involving that patent

for any product manufactured marketed or sold by St Jude

Medical prior to October 20 2012 On October 22 2012

Volcano proceeded to trial on its three remaining patents and

on October 25 2012 the jury ruled that the Company did not

infringe these three patents The Court entered judgment on

the jury verdicts on January 2013 The Company has filed

motion for judgment as matter of law and for new trial

Volcano has filed its own motion of judgment as matter of law

If necessary the Company will appeal to the appellate court

and raise challenges to various issues related to the trial that

resulted in the October 19 2012 jury decision

Aorlech Biomaterial PlY Limited Aorlech International PLC

and Aorlech Medical Devices USA Inc St Jude Medical

License Supply Agreement Litigation On October 16 2012

the Company filed lawsuit against AorTech Biomaterial PTY

Limited AorTech International PLC and AorTech Medical

Devices USA Inc collectively AorTech in Federal District

Court for the Central District of California The lawsuit sought

declaratory and injunctive relief from AorTechs publicly

announced intention to terminate the parties License Supply

Agreement for Elast-Eon the raw material used in St Jude

Medicals Optim insulation for certain leads On October 18

2012 the Company filed an Application for Temporary

Restraining Order TRO and on November 2012 the Court

granted the Companys TRO application preventing AorTech

from terminating or breaching the License and Supply

Agreement The TRO was extended by agreement of the parties

and approval of the Court for several weeks and the matter has

now been settled and the case dismissed in December 2012

SECURITIES AND OTHER SHAREHOLDER LITIGATION

March 2010 Securities Class Action Litigation In March

2010 securities lawsuit seeking class action status was filed

in federal district court in Minnesota against the Company and

certain officers on behalf of purchasers of St Jude Medical

common stock between April 22 2009 and October 2009

The lawsuit relates to the Companys earnings announcements

for the first second and third quarters of 2009 as well as

preliminary earnings release dated October 2009 The com

plaint which seeks unspecified damages and other relief as

well as attorneys fees alleges that the Company failed to dis

close that it was experiencing slowdown in demand for its

products and was not receiving anticipated orders for CRM

devices Class members allege that the Companys failure to

disclose the above information resulted in the class purchasing

St Jude Medical stock at an artificially inflated price In

December 2011 the Court issued decision denying motion

to dismiss filed by the defendants in October 2010 On October

25 2012 the Court granted plaintiffs motion to certify the case

as class action which defendants did not oppose The dis

covery phase of the case is ongoing and the Company intends

to continue to vigorously defend against the claims asserted in

this lawsuit

June 2012 Securities Class Action Litigation In June 2012

securities class action lawsuit was filed in federal district

court in Minnesota against the Company and company officer

for alleged violations of the federal securities laws on behalf of

all purchasers of the publicly traded securities of the Company

between December 15 2010 and April 2012 who were

damaged thereby The complaint which sought unspecified

damages and other relief as well as attorneys fees alleged that

the Company failed to disclose information concerning its

Riata QuickFlex and QuickSite leads Class members alleged

that the Companys failure to disclose this information resulted

in the class purchasing St Jude Medical stock at an artificially

inflated price On August 20 2012 the plaintiff voluntarily dis

missed its complaint against the Company

December 2012 Securities Class Action Litigation On

December 2012 securities class action lawsuit was filed in

federal district court in Minnesota against the Company and an

officer for alleged violations of the federal securities laws on

behalf of all purchasers of the publicly traded securities of the

Company between October 17 2012 and November 20 2012

The complaint which seeks unspecified damages and other

relief as well as attorneys fees challenges the Companys dis

closures concerning its high voltage cardiac rhythm lead prod

ucts during the purported class period On December 10

2012 second securities class action lawsuit was filed in fed

eral district court in Minnesota against the Company and cer

tain officers for alleged violations of the federal securities laws

on behalf of all purchasers of the publicly traded securities of

the Company between October 19 2011 and November 20
2012 The second complaint pursues similar claims and seeks

unspecified damages and other relief as well as attorneys fees

Motions to consolidate the two cases and motions for appoint

ment and selection of lead counsel and lead plaintiff were filed

on February 2013 The Company expects that these actions

will be consolidated The Company intends to vigorously defend

against the claims asserted in these lawsuits
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December 2012 Derivative Litigation On December 14 2012

shareholder derivative action was initiated in Minnesota state

court in Ramsey County on behalf of the Company against

members of St Jude Medicals Board of Directors as well as

certain officers of the Company The plaintiffs
in this action

allege breach of fiduciary duty waste of corporate assets and

unjust enrichment The claims center around and involve the

Companys high voltage cardiac rhythm lead products and

related activities and events No damages are sought against

the Company The Defendants in this matter intend to vigor

ously defend against the claims asserted in this lawsuit

Other than disclosed above the Company has not recorded an

expense related to any potential damages in connection with

these litigation matters because any potential loss is not proba

ble or reasonably estimable Additionally other than disclosed

above the Company cannot reasonably estimate loss or range

of loss if any that may result from these litigation matters

GOVERNMENTAL INVESTIGATIONS

In March 2010 the Company received Civil Investigative

Demand CID from the Civil Division of the DOJ The CID

requests documents and sets forth interrogatories related to

communications by and within the Company on various indica

tions for ICDs and National Coverage Decision issued by

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services Similar requests

were made of the Companys major competitors In addition on

August 31 2012 the Company received CID from the Civil

Division of the DOJ requesting documents related to St Jude

Medicals Riata and Riata ST silicone-insulated products

The CID appears to relate to review of whether circumstances

surrounding the Companys Riata and Riata ST defibrillator

lead products caused the submission of false claims to federal

healthcare programs Finally on September 20 2012 the

Office of Inspector General for the Department of Health and

Human Services OIG issued subpoena requiring the

Company to produce certain documents related to payments

made by the Company to healthcare professionals practicing in

California Florida and Arizona as well as policies and proce

dures related to payments made by the Company to non-

employee healthcare professionals

The Company is cooperating with these investigations and is

responding to these requests However the Company cannot

predict when these investigations will be resolved the outcome

of these investigations or their impact on the Company The

Company has not recorded an expense related to any potential

damages in connection with these governmental matters

because any potential loss is not probable or reasonably esti

mable The Company cannot reasonably estimate loss or

range of loss if any that may result from these matters

REGULATORY MATTERS

In late September 2012 the FDA commenced an inspection of

the Companys Sylmar California facility and following such

inspection issued eleven observations on Form 483 In early

November 2012 the Companys provided written responses to

the FDA detailing proposed corrective actions and immediately

initiated efforts to address the FDAs observations of noncon

formity The Company subsequently received warning letter

dated January 10 2013 from the FDA relating to these non-

conformities with respect to its Sylmar California facility The

warning letter does not identify any specific concerns regard

ing the performance of or indicate the need for any field or

other action regarding any particular St Jude Medical prod

uct The Sylmar California facility will continue to manufacture

CRM devices while the Company works with the FDA to

address its concerns

The FDA inspected the Companys Piano Texas manufacturing

facility at various times between March and April 2009 On

April 2009 the FDA issued Form 483 identifying certain

observed nonconformities with current Good Manufacturing

Practice cGMP Following the receipt of the Form 483 the

Company provided written responses to the FDA detailing

proposed corrective actions and immediately initiated efforts

to address the FDAs observations of nonconformity The

Company subsequently received warning letter dated June

26 2009 from the FDA relating to these non-conformities with

respect to its legacy Neuromodulation divisions Piano Texas

and Hackettstown New Jersey facilities

With respect to both of these warning letters the FDA notes

that it will not grant requests for exportation certificates to for

eign governments or approve pre-market approval applications

for Class Ill devices to which the quality system regulation devi

ations are reasonably related until the violations have been cor

rected The Company is working cooperatively with the FDA to

resolve all of its concerns

Customer orders have not been and are not expected to be

impacted while the Company works to resolve the FDAs con

cerns The Company is working diligently to respond timely and

fully to the FDAs observations and requests While the Company

believes the issues raised by the FDA can be resolved without

material impact on the Companys financial results the FDA has

recently been increasing its scrutiny of the medical device

industry and raising the threshold for compliance The govern

ment is expected to continue to scrutinize the industry closely

with inspections and possibly enforcement actions by the FDA

or other agencies The Company is regularly monitoring assess

ing and improving its internal compliance systems and proce

dures to ensure that its activities are consistent with applicable

laws regulations and requirements including those of the FDA
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NOTE
SHAREHOLDERS EQjITY

Capital Stock The Companys authorized capital consists of 25

million shares of $1.00 per share par value preferred stock and

500 million shares of $0.10 per share par value common stock

There were no shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding

during 2012 2011 or 2010

Share Repurchases On November 29 2012 the Companys

Board of Directors authorized share repurchase program of

up to $1.0 billion of its outstanding common stock The

Company began repurchasing shares on December 2012

and completed the repurchases under the program on

February 2013 repurchasing 26.8 million shares for $1.0

billion at an average repurchase price of $37.27 per share

From December 2012 through December 29 2012 the

Company repurchased 12.9 million shares for $458 million at

an average repurchase price of $35.60 per share

On October 17 2012 the Companys Board of Directors autho

rized share repurchase program of up to $300 million of its

outstanding common stock The Company began repurchasing

shares on October 19 2012 and completed the repurchases

under the program on November 2012 repurchasing 7.7

million shares for $300 million at an average repurchase price

of $38.97 per share

On December 12 2011 the Companys Board of Directors

authorized share repurchase program of up to $300 million

of the Companys outstanding common stock The Company

began repurchasing shares on January 27 2012 and com

pleted the repurchases under the program on February

2012 repurchasing 7.1 million shares for $300 million at an

average repurchase price of $42.14 per share

On August 2011 the Companys Board of Directors autho

rized share repurchase program of up to $500 million of the

Companys outstanding common stock The Company com

pleted the repurchases under the program on August 29

2011 repurchasing 11.7 million shares for $500 million at an

average repurchase price of $42.79 per share

On October 15 2010 the Companys Board of Directors autho

rized share repurchase program of up to $600 million of the

Companys outstanding common stock On October 21 2010
the Companys Board of Directors authorized an additional

$300 million of share repurchases as part of this share repur

chase program Through January 2011 the Company had

repurchased 15.4 million shares for $625 million at an average

repurchase price of $40.63 per share The Company continued

repurchasing shares in 2011 and completed the repurchases

under the program on January 20 2011 repurchasinga pro

gram total of 22.0 million shares for $900 million at an average

repurchase price of $40.87 per share

Dividends During 2012 the Companys Board of Directors

authorized four quarterly cash dividend payments of $0.23 per

share paid on April 30 2012 July 31 2012 October 31 2012

and January 31 2013 During 2011 the Companys Board of

Directors authorized four quarterly cash dividend payments of

$0.21 per share paid on April 29 2011 July 29 2011
October 31 2011 and January 31 2012 No cash dividends

were paid in 2010

On February 23 2013 the Companys Board of Directors

authorized cash dividend of $0.25 per share payable on April

30 2013 to shareholders of record as of March 29 2013

NOTE
STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

The Companys stock compensation plans provide for the issu

ance of stock-based awards such as stock options restricted

stock units and restricted stock awards to directors officers

employees and consultants Since 2000 all stock option

awards granted under these plans have an exercise price equal

to the fair market value on the date of grant an eight-year con

tractual life and generally vest annually over four-year vesting

term Restricted stock units and restricted stock awards under

these plans also generally vest annually over four-year period

Restricted stock awards are considered issued and outstanding

at the grant date and have the same dividend and voting rights

as other common stock Directors can elect to receive half of

their entire annual retainer in the form of restricted stock

award with six-month vesting term Restricted stock units are

not issued and outstanding at the grant date instead upon

vesting the recipient receives one share of the Companys com
mon stock for each vested restricted stock unit At December

29 2012 the Company had 19.2 million shares of common

stock available for stock option grants under its stock compen
sation plans The Company has the ability to grant portion of

the available shares in the form of restricted stock awards or

units Specifically in lieu of granting up to 16.8 million stock

options under these plans the Company may grant up to 7.5

million restricted stock awards or units for certain grants of

restricted stock units or awards the number of shares available

are reduced by 2.25 shares Additionally in lieu of granting up

to 0.1 million stock options under these plans the Company

may grant up to 0.1 million restricted stock awards for certain

grants of restricted stock awards the number of shares
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available are reduced by one share The remaining 2.3 million

shares of common stock are available only for stock option

grants At December 29 2012 there was $141 million of total

unrecognized stock-based compensation expense adjusted for

estimated forfeitures which is expected to be recognized over

weighted average period of 3.0 years and will be adjusted for

any future changes in estimated forfeitures

The Company also has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan

ESPP that allows participating employees to purchase newly

issued shares of the Companys common stock at discount

through payroll deductions The ESPP consists of 12-month

offering period whereby employees can purchase shares at

85% of the market value at either the beginning of the offering

period or the end of the offering period whichever price is

lower Employees purchased 0.9 million shares each year in fis

cal years 2012 2011 and 2010 At December 29 2012 6.7

million shares of common stock were available for future pur

chases under the ESPP

The Companys total stock compensation expense for fiscal

years 2012 2011 and 2010 by income statement line item was

as follows in millions

2012 2011 2010

Selling general and

administrative expense $49 $55 $49

Research and development expense 15 15 15

cost of sales

Total stock compensation expense $69 $76 $70

VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS

The Company uses the Black-Scholes standard option pricing

model Black-Scholes model to determine the fair value of

stock options and ESPP purchase rights The determination of

the fair value of the awards on the date of grant using the

Black-Scholes model is affected by the Companys stock price

as well as assumptions of other variables including projected

employee stock option exercise behaviors risk-free interest

rate expected volatility of the Companys stock price in future

periods and expected dividend yield The fair value of both

restricted stock and restricted stock units is based on the

Companys closing stock price on the date of grant The

weighted average fair value of restricted stock awards granted

during fiscal years 2012 2011 and 2010 was $37.63 $49.77

and $37.08 respectively The weighted average fair value of

the restricted stock units granted during fiscal years 2012

2011 and 2010 was $35.39 $35.14 and $41.65 respectively

The weighted average fair value of ESPP purchase rights

granted to employees during fiscal years 2012 2011 and 2010

was $9.39 $10.86 and $9.70 respectively

The following table provides the weighted average fair value of

stock options granted to employees during fiscal years 2012

2011 and 2010 and the related weighted average assumptions

used in the Black-Scholes model

2012 2011 2010

Fair value of options granted $7.71 $9.17 $11.79

Assumptions

Expected life years 5.4 5.5 4.8

Risk-free interest rate 0.7% 0.9% 2.2%

volatility 31.2% 33.9% 31.7%

Dividend yield 2.5% 2.0%

Expected Life The Company analyzes historical employee

exercise and termination data to estimate the expected life

assumption Annually the Company updates these assump
tions unless circumstances would indicate more frequent

update is necessary

Risk-free Interest Rate The rate is based on the U.S Treasury

zero-coupon yield curve on the grant date for maturity equal

to or approximating the expected life of the options

Volatility The Company calculates its expected volatility

assumption by blending the historical and implied volatility The

historical volatility is based on the daily closing prices of the

Companys common stock over period equal to the expected

term of the option Market-based implied volatility is based on

utilizing market data of actively traded options on the

Companys stock from options at- or near-the-money at

point in time as close to the grant date of the employee options

as reasonably practical and with similar terms to the employee

share option or remaining maturity of at least six months if

no similar terms are available The historical volatility of the

Companys common stock price over the expected term of the

option is strong indicator of the expected future volatility In

addition implied volatility takes into consideration market

expectations of how future volatility will differ from historical

volatility The Company does not believe that one estimate is

more reliable than the other and as result the Company uses

an equal weighting of historical volatility and market-based

implied volatility

Dividend Yield For all grants through fiscal year 2010 the

Company had not anticipated paying cash dividends and there

fore assumed dividend yield of zero Beginning in fiscal year

2011 the Company began paying cash dividends The

Companys dividend yield assumption is based on the expected

annual dividend yield on the grant date

48



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STOCK COMPENSATION ACTIVITY

The following table summarizes stock option activity under all

stock compensation plans during the fiscal year ended

December 29 2012

Weighted

Weighted Average Aggregate

Average Remaining Intrinsic

Options Exercise Contractual Value

in millions Price Term in years in millions

Outstanding at

December 31 2011 29.0 $38.51

Granted 4.5 35.38

Exercised 2.5 36.35

Canceled 2.8 40.05

Outstanding at

December 29 2012 28.2 $38.05 4.8 $24

Vested and expected

to vest 27.1 $38.10 4.7 $24

Exercisable at

December 29 2012 17.9 $38.88 3.6 $21

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and options

exercisable is based on the Companys closing stock price on

the last trading day of the fiscal year for in-the-money options

The aggregate intrinsic value represents the cumulative differ

ence between the fair market value of the underlying common

stock and the option exercise prices The total intrinsic value of

options exercised during fiscal years 2012 2011 and 2010 was

$14 million $96 million and $83 million respectively

The following table summarizes activity for restricted stock

awards and restricted stock units under all stock compensation

plans during the fiscal year ended December 29 2012

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Fair Value

unvested balance at December 31 2011 1.3 $38.01

Granted 0.8 35.42

Vested 0.3 38.41

Canceled 0.2 38.17

lJnvested balance at December 29 2012 1.6 $36.61

The total aggregate fair value of restricted stock awards and

restricted stock units vested during fiscal years 2012 2011 and

2010 was $11 million $7 million and $1 million respectively

NOTE
PURCHASED INPROCESS RESEARCH

AND DEVELOPMENT IPRD AND
SPECIAL CHARGES

IPRD CHARGES

During 2011 the Company recorded IPRD charges of $4 mil

lion in conjunction the purchase of intellectual property in its

CRM operating segment During 2010 the Company recorded

IPRD charges of $12 million in conjunction with the purchase

of cardiovascular-related intellectual property As the related

technological feasibility had not yet been reached and such

technology had no future alternative use these intellectual

property asset purchases were expensed as IPRD

SPECIAL CHARGES

The Company recognizes certain transactions and events as

special charges in its consolidated financial statements These

charges such as restructuring charges impairment charges

and certain settlement or litigation charges result from facts

and circumstances that vary in frequency and impact on the

Companys results of operations In order to enhance segment

comparability and reflect managements focus on the ongoing

operations of the Company special charges are not reflected in

the individual reportable segments operating results

2012 Business Realignment Plan During 2012 the Company

incurred charges of $185 million resulting from the realignment

of its product divisions into two new operating divisions the

Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies Division CATD

combining the Companys legacy CV and AF product divisions

and the Implantable Electronic Systems Division IESD com
bining the Companys legacy CRM and NMD product divi

sions In addition the Company centralized certain support

functions including information technology human resources

legal business development and certain marketing functions

The organizational changes are part of comprehensive plan

to accelerate the Companys growth reduce costs leverage

economies of scale and increase investment in product devel

opment In connection with the realignment the Company rec

ognized $109 million of severance costs and other termination

benefits after management determined that such severance

and benefit costs were probable and estimable in accordance

with ASC Topic 712 Nonretirement Postemployment Benefits

The 2012 business realignment plan reduced the Companys

workforce by approximately 5% The Company also recognized

$17 million of inventory write-offs associated with discontinued

CATD product lines and $41 million of accelerated depreciation

charges and fixed asset write-offs primarily associated with

Restricted Stock

in millions
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information technology assets no longer expected to be utilized or with limited remaining useful life Additionally the Company

recognized $18 million of other restructuring costs which included $7 million of contract termination costs and $11 million of

other costs

summary of the activity related to the 2012 business realignment plan accrual is as follows in millions

2011 Restructuring Plan During 2011 the Company incurred

charges totaling $162 million related to restructuring actions to

realign certain activities in the Companys CRM business and

sales and selling support organizations The restructuring

actions included phasing out CRM manufacturing and RD
operations in Sweden reductions in the Companys workforce

and rationalizing product lines In connection with the staged

phase-out of CRM manufacturing and RD operations in

Sweden the Company began recognizing severance costs and

other termination benefits for over 650 employees in accor

dance with ASC Topic 420 Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations

whereby certain employee termination costs are recognized over

the employees remaining future service period Additionally

during 2011 the Company recognized certain severance costs

for 550 employees after management determined that such sev

erance and benefit costs were probable and estimable in accor

dance with ASC Topic 712 Nonretirement Postemployment

Benefits The total charge for employee termination costs recog

nized during 2011 was $82 million Additionally the Company

recognized $20 million of inventory obsolescence charges pri

marily associated with the rationalization of product lines across

its business The Company also recorded $26 million of impair

ment and accelerated depreciation charges of which $12 mil

lion related to an impairment charge to write-down the

Companys CRM manufacturing facility in Sweden to its fair

value Additionally the Company recognized $34 million of other

restructuring charges primarily associated with CRM restructur

ing actions $13 million of pension settlement charges associ

ated with the termination of Swedens defined benefit pension

plan and $4 million of idle facility costs related to transitioning

manufacturing operations out of Sweden as well as $7 million

of contract termination costs and $10 million of other costs

During 2012 the Company incurred additional charges totaling

$102 million related to the restructuring actions initiated during

2011 The Company recognized severance costs and other ter

mination benefits of $38 million for an additional 100 employ

ees after management determined that such severance and

benefit costs were probable and estimable in accordance with

ASC Topic 712 Nonretirement Postemployment Benefits The

Company also recognized $13 million of inventory obsoles

cence charges primarily related with the rationalization of prod

uct lines in its CRM and NMD businesses Additionally the

Company recognized $51 million of other restructuring charges

which included $37 million of restructuring related charges

associated with the Companys CRM business and sales and

selling support organizations of which $13 million primarily

related to idle facility costs in Sweden The remaining charges

included $8 million of contract termination costs and $6 million

of other costs

Employee

Termination

costs

Inventory

charges

Fixed

Asset

charges

Other

Restructuring

costs Total

Balance at December 31 2011

cost of sales special charges 17 24

Special charges 104 41 16 161

Non-cash charges used 17 41 61
cash payments 52 59
Foreign exchange rate impact

Balance at December 29 2012 58 66
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summary of the activity related to the 2011 restructuring plan accrual is as follows in millions

Fixed

Asset

Charges

Other Special Charges

Inventory Charges During 2010 the Company recorded

$28 million of inventory obsolescence charges to cost of

sales primarily related to excess legacy lCD inventory that

was not expected to be sold due to the Companys launch of

its Unify CRT-D and Fortify lCD devices The Companys

market demand for these devices resulted in more rapid

adoption than expected or historically experienced from other

lCD product launches

Intangible Asset Impairment Charges During 2012 the

Company recognized $23 million impairment charge for cer

tain developed technology intangible assets in its NMD division

as the Companys updated expectations for the future cash

flows of the related product lines decreased ultimately result

ing in the related assets fair value falling below carrying value

Additionally the Company discontinued certain AF and CV

product lines and recognized $8 million of impairment charges

to fully impair the related developed technology intangible

assets The Company also recognized $2 million of intangible

asset impairments associated with customer relationship intan

gible assets acquired in connection with legacy acquisitions of

businesses involved in the distribution of the Companys prod

ucts Due to the changing dynamics of the U.S healthcare

market specifically as it relates to hospital purchasing prac

tices the Company determined that these intangible assets

had no future discrete cash flows and were fully impaired

During 2011 the Company recorded $52 million of intangible

asset impairment charges of which $49 million related to cus

tomer relationship intangible assets acquired in connection with

legacy acquisitions of businesses involved in the distribution of

the Companys products As discussed previously due to the

changing dynamics of the U.S healthcare market specifically

as it relates to hospital purchasing practices the Company

determined that these intangible assets had no future discrete

cash flows and recognized $49 million impairment charge

Settlement Charges During 2012 the Company agreed to

settle dispute on licensed technology for the Companys

Angio-Seal vascular closure devices In connection with this

settlement which resolved all disputed claims and included

fully-paid perpetual license the Company recognized $28

million settlement expense which it classified as special

charge and also recognized $12 million licensed technology

intangible asset to be amortized over the technologys remain

ing patent life

Litigation Charges During 2012 the Company recognized

$16 million of litigation charges for future probable and estima

ble legal costs related to outstanding matters associated with

the Companys IESD field actions During 2011 the Company

recognized $4 million legal settlement charge after reaching

an agreement with the Office of Inspector General of the

Department of Health and Human Services to settle previ

ously disclosed investigation initiated in December 2008

related to allegations that the Company failed to properly apply

certain warranty credits During 2010 the Company recognized

$17 million legal settlement charge after reaching an agree

ment with the Boston U.S DOJ to settle previously disclosed

investigation initiated in 2005 related to an industry-wide

review of post-market clinical studies and registries

Employee

Termination

Costs

Inventory

Charges

Other

Restructuring

Costs Total

Balance at January 2011

Cost of sales special charges 20 47

Special charges 73 17 25 115

Non-cash charges used 20 26 47

Cash payments 27 15 42

Foreign exchange rate impact

Balance at December31 2011 54 18 72

Cost of sales special charges 11 13 20 44

Special charges 27 31 58

Non-cashchargesused 13 17

Cash payments 68 47 115

Foreign exchange rate impact

Balance at December 29 2012 25 17 42
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Field Action Charges During 2012 the Corn pany recognized

special charges of $27 million of which $25 million was

charged to cost of sales for costs primarily related to the 2012

field action associated with certain neuromodulation implant-

able pulse generator charging systems

NOTE
OTHER INCOME EXPENSE NET

The Companys other income expense consisted of the follow

ing in millions

2012 2011 2010

Interest income

Interest expense 73 70 67
Other 27 30

Total other income expense net $95 $96 $68

During 2011 legislation became effective in Puerto Rico that

levied an excise tax for most purchases from Puerto Rico The

Company recognized $31 million and $28 million of excise tax

expense during 2012 and 2011 for purchases made from its

Puerto Rico subsidiary This tax is almost entirely offset by the

foreign tax credits which are recognized as benefit to income

tax expense

The Company classifies realized gains or losses from the sale of

investments and investment impairment charges as other

income expense The Company recognized $14 million and

$5 million of realized gains in other income during 2012 and

2010 respectively associated with the sale of available-for-sale

securities Additionally during 2010 the Company recognized

investment impairment charges of $5 million in other expense

NOTE 10
INCOME TAXES

The Companys earnings before income taxes as generated from

its U.S and international operations are as follows in millions

2012 2011 2010

U.S 316 502 553

International 689 517 655

Earnings before income taxes $1005 $1019 $1208

Income tax expense consisted of the following in millions

2012 2011 2010

current

U.S federal $236 $180 $264

U.S state and other 16 13 14

International 78 65 57

Total current 330 258 335

Deferred 77 65 34

Income tax expense $253 $193 $301

Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences

between the amount of assets and liabilities recognized for

financial reporting and tax purposes The components of

deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows in millions

2012 2011

Deferred income tax assets

Net operating and capital loss carryforwards 236 164

Tax credit carryforwards 70 60

Inventories 148 145

5tockbased compensation 78 73

compensation and benefits 113 101

Accrued liabilities and other 133 117

778 660

Less valuation allowance 228 157

Deferred income tax assets 550 503

Deferred income tax liabilities

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 12 11
Property plant and equipment 204 207

Intangible assets 307 332

Deferred income tax liabilities 523 550

Net deferred income tax assets liabilities 27 47

At December 29 2012 the Company had U.S federal net

operating and capital loss carryforwards the tax effect of which

was $12 million and $2 million of U.S tax credit carryforwards

that will expire from 2014 through 2027 if not utilized The

Company also has state net operating loss carryforwards the

tax effect of which was $1 million that will expire from 2014

through 2018 and tax credit carryforwards tax effected of $68

million that have an unlimited carryforward period These

amounts are subject to annual usage limitations In addition the

Company had foreign tax net operating loss carryforwards the

tax effect of which was $223 million as of December 29 2012

These tax attributes have an unlimited carryforward period

The Company establishes valuation allowances for deferred

tax assets when after consideration of all positive and negative

evidence it is considered more-likely-than-not that portion

of the deferred tax assets will not be realized The Companys

valuation allowances of $228 million and $157 million at
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December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively

reduce the carrying value of deferred tax assets associated with

certain net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards

reconciliation of the U.S federal statutory income tax rate to

the Companys effective income tax rate is as follows

2012 2011 2010

U.S federal statutory tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Increase decrease in tax rate

resulting from

U.S state income taxes net of

federal tax benefit 0.5 1.2 2.2

International taxes at lower rates 12.1 11.6 10.0

Tax benefits from domestic

manufacturers deduction 2.2 2.0 1.1

Research and development credits 1.1 2.7 2.4

Puerto Rico excise tax 1.8 1.7

Non-deductible IPRD charges 0.4

Settlement reserve for certain

prior year tax positions 4.6

Other 2.3 0.8 0.8

Effective income tax rate 25.2% 19.0% 24.9%

The Companys effective income tax rate is favorably impacted

by tax incentive grants which result in Puerto Rico earnings

being partially tax exempt through the year 2023

The Company has not recorded U.S deferred income taxes on

approximately $2.8 billion of its non-U.S subsidiaries undis

tributed earnings because such amounts are intended to be

reinvested outside the United States indefinitely If these earn

ings were repatriated to the United States the Company would

be required to accrue and pay U.S federal income taxes and

foreign withholding taxes as adjusted for foreign tax credits

Determination of the amount of any unrecognized deferred

income tax liability on these earnings is not practicable

The Company recognizes all income tax liabilities in accor

dance with ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes including liabilities

for unrecognized tax benefits that require application of

accounting estimates that are subject to the inherent uncer

tainties associated with the tax audit process and therefore

include certain contingencies The Company recognizes inter

est and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax

expense The Company recognized interest and penalties net

of tax benefit of $22 million $1 million and $4 million during

fiscal years 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The Companys

accrued liability for gross interest and penalties was $69 mil

lion $35 million and $34 million at December 29 2012

December31 2011 and January 12011 respectively

The following table summarizes the activity related to the

Companys unrecognized tax benefits in millions

2012 2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year $205 $163 $121

Increases related to current year

tax positions 38 33 33

Increases related to prior year

tax positions
90 16 19

Reductions related to prior year

tax positions 18
Reductions related to

settlements payments

Expiration of the statute of limitations

forthe assessment of taxes

Balance at end of year $314 $205 $163

The Company is subject to U.S federal income tax as well as

income tax of multiple state and foreign jurisdictions The

Company has substantially concluded all U.S federal income

tax matters for all tax years through 2001 Additionally sub

stantially all material foreign state and local income tax matters

have been concluded for all tax years through 2004 The U.S

Internal Revenue Service IRS completed an audit of the

Companys 2002 through 2005 tax returns and proposed

adjustments in its audit report issued in November 2008 The

IRS completed an audit of the Companys 2006 and 2007 tax

returns and proposed adjustments in its audit report issued in

March 2011 The Company initiated its defense at the IRS

appellate level in January 2009 for the 2002 through 2005

adjustments and in May 2011 for the 2006 through 2007

adjustments The IRS is currently auditing the Companys 2008

and 2009 tax returns and an audit report is expected to be

issued in 2013 In 2012 the Company recorded $46 million of

additional tax expense related to settlement reserve for cer

tain prior year tax positions related to the 2002 through 2009

tax years While the final outcome of the Companys outstand

ing tax matters is inherently uncertain the Company expects to

reduce the amount of its liability for unrecognized tax benefits

by approximately $100 million within the next 12 months

resulting from cash settlement payments and/or adjustments to

previously recorded income tax reserves

NOTE 11
RETIREMENT PLANS

Defined Contribution Plans The Company has 401k profit

sharing plan that provides retirement benefits to substantially

all full-time U.S employees Eligible employees may contribute

percentage of their annual compensation subject to IRS limi

tations with the Company matching portion of the employees

contributions at the discretion of the Companys Board of

Directors In addition the Company has defined contribution
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programs for employees in certain countries outside the United

States Company contributions under all defined contribution

plans totaled $26 million $23 million and $21 million in 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively

The Company also has non-qualified deferred compensation

plan that provides certain officers and employees the ability to

defer portion of their compensation until later date The

deferred amounts and earnings thereon are payable to partici

pants or designated beneficiaries at specified future dates

upon retirement death or termination from the Company The

deferred compensation liability which is classified as other lia

bilities was approximately $234 million and $205 million at

December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively

Defined Benefit Plans The Company has funded and

unfunded defined benefit plans for employees in certain coun

tries outside the United States The Company had an accrued

liability totaling $16 million and $15 million at December 29
2012 and December 31 2011 respectively which approxi

mated the actuarial calculated unfunded liability The amount

of funded plan assets and the amount of pension expense was

not material In connection with the CRM restructuring actions

see Note the Company elected to terminate its defined

benefit pension plan in Sweden and made lump sum settle

ment payment of $31 million during the fourth quarter of 2011

and recognized pension settlement charge of $13 million

NOTE 12
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value measurement accounting standard codified in

ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurement ASC Topic 820 pro

vides framework for measuring fair value and defines fair

value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer liability Fair value is market-based mea
surement that should be determined using assumptions that

market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability

The standard establishes valuation hierarchy for inputs used

in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable

inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requir

ing that the most observable inputs be used when available

Observable inputs are inputs market participants would use in

valuing the asset or liability developed based on independent

market data sources Unobservable inputs are inputs that

reflect the Companys assumptions about the factors market

participants would use in valuing the asset or liability developed

based upon the best information available The valuation

hierarchy is composed of three categories The categorization

within the valuation hierarchy is based on the lowest level of

input that is significant to the fair value measurement

The categories within the valuation hierarchy are described

as follows

Level Inputs to the fair value measurement are quoted

prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Inputs to the fair value measurement include

quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities

quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in

markets that are not active and inputs other than quoted

prices that are observable for the asset or liability either

directly or indirectly

Level Inputs to the fair value measurement are unobserv

able inputs or valuation techniques

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THAT ARE MEASURED AT

FAIR VALUE ON RECURRING BASIS

The fair value measurement standard applies to certain finan

cial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on

recurring basis each reporting period These financial assets

and liabilities include money-market securities trading market

able securities available-for-sale marketable securities and

derivative instruments The Company continues to record these

items at fair value on recurring basis and the fair value mea
surements are applied using ASC Topic 820 The Company

does not have any material nonfinancial assets or liabilities that

are measured at fair value on recurring basis summary of

the valuation methodologies used for the respective financial

assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis

is as follows

Money-Market Securities The Companys money-market

securities include funds that are traded in active markets and

are recorded at fair value based upon the quoted market

prices The Company classifies these securities as level

Trading Securities The Companys trading securities include

publicly-traded mutual funds that are traded in active markets

and are recorded at fair value based upon quoted market

prices of the net asset values of the funds The Company clas

sifies these securities as level

Available-For-Sale Securities The Companys available-for

sale securities include publicly-traded equity securities that are

traded in active markets and are recorded at fair value based

upon the closing stock prices The Company classifies these

securities as level
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Derivative Instruments The Companys derivative instruments consist of foreign currency exchange contracts and interest rate

swap contracts The Company classifies these instruments as level as the fair value is determined using inputs other than

observable quoted market prices These inputs include spot and forward foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates that

the Company obtains from standard market data providers The fair value of the Companys outstanding foreign currency

exchange contracts was not material at December 29 2012 or December 31 2011

Significant

Quoted Prices Other Significant

In Active Observable Unobservable

Balance Sheet Markets Inputs Inputs

Classification December 29 2012 Level Level Level

Assets

Money-market securities cash and cash equivalents 964 964

Available-for-sale securities Other current assets 41 41

Trading securities Other assets 231 231

Total assets $1236 $1236

Significant

Quoted Prices Other Significant

In Active Observable Unobservable

Balance Sheet Markets Inputs Inputs

Classification December 31 2011 Level Level Level

Assets

Money-market securities Cash and cash equivalents
745 745

Available-for-sale securities Other current assets 39 39

Trading securities Other assets 205 205

Interest rate swap Other assets 18 18

Total assets $1007 989 $18

The Company also had $230 million and $241 million of cash

equivalents invested in short-term deposits and interest and

non-interest bearing bank accounts at December 29 2012 and

December 31 2011 respectively

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THAT ARE MEASURED

AT FAIR VALUE ON NONRECURRING BASIS

The fair value measurement standard also applies to certain

nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair

value on nonrecurring basis summary of the valuation

methodologies used for the respective nonfinancial assets

and liabilities measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis

is as follows

Long-Lived Assets The Company reviews the carrying amount

of its long-lived assets other than goodwill and indefinite-lived

intangible assets for potential impairment whenever events or

changes in circumstance include.a significant decrease in mar

ket price significant adverse change in the extent or manner

in which an asset is being used or significant adverse change

in the legal or business climate The Company measures the

fair value of its long-lived assets such as its definite-lived

intangible assets and property plant and equipment using

independent appraisals market models and discounted cash

flow models discounted cash flow model requires inputs to

present value cash flow calculation such as risk-adjusted dis

count rate operating budgets long-term strategic plans and

remaining useful lives of the asset or asset group If the carry

ing value of the Companys long-lived assets excluding good

will and indefinite-lived intangible assets exceeds the related

undiscounted future cash flows the carrying value is written

down to the fair value in the period identified

During 2012 the Company determined that certain purchased

technology intangible assets in the Companys NMD business

were impaired and recognized $23 million impairment charge

to write-down the intangible assets to their estimated fair value

of $3 million The fair value measurements of these intangible

assets are considered Level in the fair value hierarchy due to

the use of unobservable inputs specifically the discounted

summary of financial assets measured at fair value on recurring basis at December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 is as

follows in millions
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cash flow income approach method to measure fair value

Additionally the Company determined that certain purchased

technology intangible assets in the Companys AF and CV busi

nesses were fully impaired as the related product lines were

discontinued and recognized an $8 million impairment charge

as these intangible assets had no discrete future cash flows

The fair value measurements of these intangible assets are

considered Level in the fair value hierarchy due to the use of

unobservable inputs specifically the discounted cash flow

income approach method to measure fair value The Company

also recognized $2 million of intangible asset impairments asso

ciated with customer relationship intangible assets acquired in

connection with legacy acquisitions of businesses involved in

the distribution of the Companys products Due to the chang

ing dynamics of the U.S healthcare market specifically as it

relates to hospital purchasing practices the Company deter

mined that these intangible assets had no future discrete cash

flows and were fully impaired

During 2011 the Company initiated restructuring actions

resulting in the planned future closure of its CRM manufactur

ing facility in Sweden resulting in the recognition of $12 mil

lion impairment charge to write-down the facility to its estimated

fair value of $13 million The fair value measurement of the

facility is considered Level in the fair value hierarchy due to

the use of observable inputs specifically comparable third party

sale prices for similar facilities The Company also recognized

$52 million of intangible asset impairments primarily associated

with customer relationship intangible assets As discussed pre

viously due to the changing dynamics of the U.S healthcare

market specifically as it relates to hospital purchasing prac

tices the Company determined that these intangible assets had

no future discrete cash flows and were fully impaired Refer to

Note for further details of these charges There were no mate

rial impairments of the Companys long-lived assets recognized

during fiscal year 2010

Cost Method Investments The Company also holds invest

ments in equity securities that are accounted for as cost

method investments which are classified as other assets and

measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis The carrying

value of these investments approximated $151 million and

$128 million at December 29 2012 and December 31 2011

respectively The fair value of the Companys cost method

investments is not estimated if there are no identified events or

changes in circumstances that may have significant adverse

effect on the fair value of these investments When measured

on nonrecurring basis the Companys cost method invest

ments are considered Level in the fair value hierarchy due to

the use of unobservable inputs to measure fair value During

2010 the Company determined that the fair value of cost

method investment was fully impaired as it did not believe that

any of the investment carrying value would be recovered due to

the investees deteriorating financial condition and its expected

inability to operate as going concern As result the

Company recognized $5 million impairment charge in other

expense to fully write-off the investment see Note

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF OTHER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The aggregate fair value of the Companys fixed-rate senior

notes at December 29 2012 measured using quoted prices in

active markets was $2521 million compared to the aggregate

carrying value of $2412 million inclusive of the terminated

interest rate swaps The fair value of the Companys variable-

rate debt obligations at December 29 2012 approximated their

aggregate $668 million carrying value due to the variable inter

est rate and short-term nature of these instruments

NOTE 13
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company follows the provisions of ASC Topic 815 in

accQunting for and disclosing derivative instruments and hedg

ing activities All derivative financial instruments are recog

nized on the balance sheet at fair value Changes in the fair

value of derivatives are recognized in net earnings or other

comprehensive income depending on whether the derivative is

designated as part of qualifying hedge transaction Derivative

assets and derivative liabilities are classified as other current

assets other assets other current liabilities or other liabilities

based on the gain or loss position of the contract and the con

tract maturity date

FOREIGN CURRENCY FORWARD CONTRACTS

The Company hedges portion of its foreign currency

exchange rate risk through the use of forward exchange con

tracts The Company uses forward exchange contracts to man

age foreign currency exposures related to intercompany

receivables and payables arising from intercompany purchases

of manufactured products These forward contracts are not

designated as qualifying hedging relationships under ASC Topic

815 The Company measures its foreign currency exchange

contracts at fair value on recurring basis The fair value of

outstanding contracts was immaterial as of December 29 2012
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and December 31 2011 During fiscal years 2012 and 2011

the net amount of gains losses the Company recorded to

other income expense for its forward currency exchange con

tracts not designated as hedging instruments under ASC Topic

815 was net gain of $7 million and net loss of $3 million

respectively The net loss recognized in 2010 was immaterial

These net gains losses were almost entirely offset by corre

sponding net losses gains on the foreign currency exposures

being managed The Company does not enter into contracts for

trading or speculative purposes The Companys policy is to

enter into hedging contracts with major financial institutions

that have at least an or equivalent credit rating

INTEREST RATE SWAPS

In prior periods the Company has chosen to hedge the fair

value of certain debt obligations through the use of interest rate

swap contracts For interest rate swap contracts that are desig

nated and qualify as fair value hedges changes in the value of

the fair value hedge are recognized as an asset or liability as

applicable offsetting the changes in the fair value of the hedged

debt instrument When outstanding the Companys swap con

tracts are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets as

component of other current assets other assets other accrued

expenses or other liabilities based on the gain or loss position of

the contract and the contract maturity date Additionally any

payments made or received under the swap contracts are

accrued and recognized as interest expense In June 2012 the

Company terminated the interest rate swap it had entered into

concurrent with the March 2010 issuance of the 2016 Senior

Notes and received cash payment of $24 million The gain

from terminating the interest rate swap agreement has been

reflected as an increase to the carrying value of the debt and is

being amortized as reduction of interest expense resulting in

net average interest rate of 1.3% that will be recognized over

the remaining term of the 2016 Senior Notes

In March 2010 the Company entered into 3-year $450.0

million notional amount interest rate swap designated as fair

value hedge of the changes in fair value of the Companys

fixed-rate 2013 Senior Notes On November 2010 the

Company terminated the interest rate swap and received cash

payment of $19 million The gain from terminating the interest

rate swap is being amortized as reduction of interest expense

resulting in net average interest rate of 0.8% that will be rec

ognized over the remaining term of the 2013 Senior Notes

NOTE 14
SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

Segment Information While the Companys 2012 business

realignment was announced and effective August 30 2012 the

Company has continued to report under its legacy operating seg

ment structure for internal management financial forecasting and

reporting purposes through the end of fiscal year 2012 Therefore

based on U.S GAAF the Companys four operating segments are

Cardiac Rhythm Management CRM Cardiovascular CV Atrial

Fibrillation AF and Neuromodulation NMD The primary prod

ucts produced by each operating segment are CRM tachy

cardia implantable cardioverter defibrillator systems ICD5 and

bradycardia pacemaker systems pacemakers CV vascular

products which include vascular closure products pressure

measurement guidewires optical coherence tomography OCT
imaging products vascular plugs and other vascular accesso

ries and structural heart products which include heart valve

replacement and repair products and structural heart defect

devices AF electrophysiology EP introducers and catheters

advanced cardiac mapping navigation and recording systems

and ablation systems and NMD neurostimulation products

which include spinal cord and deep brain stimulation devices

The Company has aggregated the four operating segments into

two reportable segments based upon their similar operational

and economic characteristics CRM/NMD and CV/AF Net sales

of the Companys reportable segments include end-customer

revenues from the sale of products they each develop and manu
facture or distribute The costs included in each of the reportable

segments operating results include the direct costs of the prod

ucts sold to customers and operating expenses managed by

each of the reportable segments Certain expenses managed by

the Companys selling and corporate functions including all

stock-based compensation expense impairment charges certain

acquisition-related charges in-process research and develop

ment IPRD charges excise tax expense and special charges

have not been recorded in the individual reportable segments As

result reportable segment operating profit is not representative

of the operating profit of the products in these reportable seg

ments Additionally certain assets are managed by the

Companys selling and corporate functions principally including

trade receivables inventory cash and cash equivalents certain

marketable securities and deferred income taxes For manage

ment reporting purposes the Company does not compile capital

expenditures by reportable segment therefore this information

has not been presented as it is impracticable to do so
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRM/NMD CV/AF Other Total

Fiscal Year 2012

Net sales $3277 $2226 $5503

Operating profit 2185 1241 2326 1100

Depreciation and

amortization

expense 81 95 108 284

Total assets 2347 2974 3950 9271

Fiscal Year 2011

Net sales 3453 2159 5612

Operating profit 2145 1144 2174 1115

Depreciation and

amortization

expense 95 88 113 296

Total assets 2412 3093 3613 9118

Fiscal Year 2010

Net sales 3420 1744 5164

Operating profit 2125 968 1817 1276

Depreciation and

amortization

expense 91 52 101 244

Total assets 2150 3097 3319 8566

Net sales by class of similar products for the respective fiscal

years were as follows in millions

Net Sales 2012 2011 2010

cardiac rhythm management $2854 $3034 $3040

cardiovascular 1328 1337 1036

Atrial fibrillation 898 822 708

Neuromodulation 423 419 380

$5503 $5612 $5164

Geographic Information The Company markets and sells its

products primarily through direct sales force The principal

geographic markets for the Companys products are the United

States Europe Japan and Asia Pacific The Company attri

butes net sales to geographic markets based on the location of

the customer

Net sales by significant geographic market based on customer

location for the respective fiscal years were as follows in millions

Net Sales 2012 2011 2010

united States $2594 $2648 $2655

International

Europe 1432 1559 1314

Japan 665 641 553

Asia Pacific 456 416 324

Other 356 348 318

2909 2964 2509

$5503 $5612 $5164

The amounts for long-lived assets by significant geographic

market include net property plant and equipment by physical

location of the asset as follows in millions

Long-Lived Assets

united States $1036 $1007 $966

International

Europe 82 84 86

Japan 32 31 26

Asia Pacific 82 81 74

Other 193 185 172

389 381 358

$1425 $1388 $1324

The following table presents net sales and operating profit by

reportable segment in millions

December 29 December 31

2012 2011

January

2011

58



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 15
OJARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED

Fiscal Year 2012

Net sales $1395 $1410 $1326 $1372

Gross profit 1014 1027 971 953

Net earnings 212 244 176 120d

Basic net earnings

per
share 0.67 0.78 0.56 0.39

Diluted net earnings

per
share 0.67 0.78 0.56 0.39

Cash dividends declared

per share 0.23 0.23 0.23 0.23

Fiscal Year 2011

Net sales 1376 1446 1383 1407

Gross profit 1011 1051 1013 1004

Net earnings 233 241 227 125W

Basic net earnings

per share 0.72 0.73 0.70 0.39

Diluted net earnings

per share 0.71 0.72 0.69 0.39

Cash dividends declared

per share 0.21 0.21 0.21 0.21

Restructuring activities resulted in after-tas special charges of $29 million for the first

quarter $27 million for the second quarter $66 million for the third quarter and $75

million for the fourth quarter

Includes after-tax special charges of $25 million related to license dispute

settlement charge

Includes after-tax special charges of $15 million for intangible asset impairment charges

Includes after-tax special charges of $27 million related to IESD litigation and field

action costs and after-tax charges of $11 million for intangible asset impairment

charges and CATD inventory wrife-offs associated with discontinued product lines

Additionally the Company recognized $46 million of additional income tax expense

related to settlement reserve for certain prior year tax positions

Restructuring activities resulted in after-tax special charges of $29 million for the

second quarter $21 million for the third quarter and $71 million for the fourth quarter

Includes after-tax special charges of $31 million for intangible asset impairment

charges and $38 million of after-tax accounts receivable allowance charges for

collection risk in Europe

in-millions except

per share amounts

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

Stock Transfer Agent

Requests concerning the transfer or exchange of shares

lost stock certificates duplicate mailings or change of address

should be directed to the Companys Transfer Agent at

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services

1110 Centre Pointe Curve Suite 101

Mendota Heights MN 55120

800 468 9716

www.shareowneronline.com

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at

830 am Central Daylight Time on Thursday May 2013

at the Minnesota History Center 345 Kellogg Boulevard West

St Paul Minnesota 55102

Investor Contact

To obtain information about the Company call the

Investor Relations IR Department at 800 328 9634

visit St Jude Medicals Web site sjm.com or write to

Investor Relations

St Jude Medical Inc

One St Jude Medical Drive

St Paul Minnesota 55117

The IR section on St Jude Medicals website includes all SEC

filings list of analysts who cover the Company webcasts and

presentations financial information and calendar of upcom

ing earnings announcements and IR events

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan DRIP

St Jude Medical Inc.s transfer agent Wells Fargo Shareowner

Services administers the Companys Shareowner Service Plus

Plan the Plan The Plan provides registered shareholders

the ability to reinvest their dividends in additional shares of

St Jude Medical STJ common stock The Plan offers variety

of other flexible services and features in some cases available

to non-STJ shareholders including direct stock purchase the

ability to sign up for telephone and online transaction privileges

and variety of other features Please direct inquiries

concerning the Plan to Wells Fargo Shareowner Services

Trademarks

Unless otherwise noted indicates that the name is trade

mark of or licensed to St Jude Medical or one of its subsidiar

ies ST JUDE MEDICAL and the nine-squares symbol are

trademarks and services marks of St Jude Medical Inc and

its related companies

2013 St.Jude Medical Inc All Rights Reserved

Company Stock Splits

21 on 6/15/79 3/12/80 9/30/86 3/15/89 4/30/90 6/28/02

and 11/22/04 32 on 11/16/95

Stock Exchange Listings

New York Stock Exchange

Symbol STJ

Cash dividends declared were $0.23 per share and $0.21 per

share each quarter during fiscal years 2012 and 2011 respec

tively Prior to 2011 the Company had not declared or paid any

cash dividends since 1994 The range of high and low prices

per share for the Companys common stock for fiscal years

2012 and 2011 is set forth below As of February 25 2013
the Company had 2048 shareholders of record

2012

Fiscal Year

2011

Quarter High Low High Low

First $44.80 $34.23 $53.05 $40.14

Second $44.10 $34.82 $54.18 $46.01

Third $43.31 $35.57 $49.79 $35.42

Fourth $43.76 $30.25 $41.98 $32.13

Cumulative Total Shareholder Returns

$75 .._._. 79.9

63.5

07 08 09 10 11 12

The graph compares the cumulative total shareholder returns for St Jude Medical

common stock for the last five fiscal years with the Standard Poors 500 Health

care Equipment Index and the Standard Poors 500 Index weighted by market

value at each measurement point The comparison assumes that $100 was invested

on December 31 2007 in St Jude Medical common stock and in each of these

Standard Poors indeses and assumes the reinvestment of any dividends

MIX

From responsible

FSCC022483

Printed on recycled paper Please recycle

cover snd pages 1-8 contain 10% total recovered fiber/all post-consumer waste

Fsc certified Fiber Pages 9-60 contain 30% total recovered fiber/all post-consumer

waste Fsc certified Fiber

St Jude Medical SP 500 Health care Equipment SP 500

in dollars

$150

125.9

$125

vu
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Daniel Starks

Chairman President and

Chief Executive Officer

St Jude Medical Inc

St Paul Minnesota

Director since 1996

Chairman Emeritus

Stryker Corporation

an orthopedic device and

medical technology company

Kalamazoo Michigan

Director since 2005

Richard Devenuti

President

EMC Information Intelligence

Group EMC Corporation

developer and
provider of

information infrastructure

technology and solutions

Pleasanton California

Stuart Essig Ph.D

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Integra LifeSciences Holdings

Corporation

medical device company

Plainsboro New Jersey

Director since 1999

Director since 2001

Barbara Hill

Operating Partner

Moelis Capital Partners

New York City New York

Chief Executive Officer retired

Value Options Inc

privately owned managed

behavioral health company

Director since 2007

Michael Rocca

Former Senior Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer

Mallinckrodt Inc

pharmaceutical and

medical device manufacturer

St Louis Missouri

Director since 2004

Wendy Yarno

Former Chief Marketing Officer

HemoShear LLC

biotechnology research company

Charlottesville Virginia

Former Chief Marketing

Officer retired

Merck Co Inc

Director since 2002

Governance and Nominating

Committee Members

John Brown Chairperson

Stuart Essig Ph.D

Wendy Yarno

Audit Committee Members

Michael Rocca Chairperson

Richard Devenuti

Barbara Hill

Compensation Committee

Members

Stuart Essig Ph.D Chairperson

Wendy Yarno

Barbara Hill

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP

Daniel Starks

Chairman President and

Chief Executive Officer

John Heinmiller

Executive Vice President

Michael Rousseau

Group President

Joel Becker

President United States Division

Frank Callaghan

President Cardiovascular and

Ablation Technologies Division

Kathleen Chester

Vice President Global Regulatory

Angela Craig

Vice President Global Human

Resources

Rachel Ellingson

Vice President Corporate Relations

Eric Fain M.D

President Implantable Electronic

Systems Division

Jeffrey Fecho

Vice President Global Quality

Den is Gestin

President International Division

Thomas Northenscold

Vice President Information

Technology and Chief Information

Officer

Jason Zellers

Vice President General Counsel

and Corporate Secretary

Donald Zurbay

Vice President Finance and

Chief Financial Officer

John Brown

61



II Please find an electronic version

of our annual report ad

sjm .com/annuadreports/2012

St Jude Medical Inc

Global Headquarters

One St Jude Medical Dove

St Paul Minnesota 55tt7

65t 756 2000

-i-i 651 756 4310 Fax

Implantable Electronic Systems

15900 Valley View Court

Sylmar California 9t342

818 362 6822

818 364 5814 Fax

Cardiovascular and Ablation Technologies

5050 Nathan Lane North

Plymouth MN 55442

651 756 5400

651 756 5470 Fan

St Jude Medical Brasil Ltda

Pea ltapeva 538

ax andar

01332-000 Bela Vista

Sªo Paulo SR

Brazil

55 it 5080 5400

551150805423 Fax

St Jude Medical

Coordination Center BVBA

The Corporate Village

Da Vinciluan ti

Bun Ft

1935 Zaventem

Belgium

3227746811
32 772 83 84 Fax

St Jude Medical Hong Kong Ltd

Suite 1608 16/F Exchange Tower

33 Wang Chiu Road Kowloon Bay

Kowloon

Hong Kong SAP

852 2996 7688

852 2956 0622 Fax

International Division

One Lillebei Plaza

St Paul Minnesota 55117

651 756 2000

651 756 2291 Fax

St Jude Medical Japan Co Ltd

Shiodome City Center 1SF

1-5-2 Higashi Shinbushi Minato-ku

Tokyo 105-7115

Japan

81 6255 637C

81 362556371 Fax

U.S Division

6300 Bee Cave Pond

Building Two Suite 100

Austin Texas 78746

512 732 7400

512 732 2418 Fax

ST JUDE MEDICAL
sjmcom


